
LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS 

We are pleased to report that in 2004 GUESS? significantly improved its financial and operating 
performance. We added more than $90 million in revenue, and earnings quadrupled during the year. We
enhanced our financial position and moved forward with a series of new initiatives to pave the way for
future growth. At the core of our performance remains the enduring power and global reach of the
GUESS? brand. More than two decades since its birth, the brand continues to be among the most
recognized in the world and offers considerable, yet-untapped potential. 

FISCAL YEAR 2004 RESULTS 

For the year, GUESS? reported net earnings of $29.6 million, or diluted earnings of $0.66 per share, 
up significantly from net earnings in 2003 of $7.3 million, or diluted earnings of $0.17 per share. The 2003 
results included impairment and severance charges of $2.4 million, or $1.4 million net of tax or $0.03 per 
share. Total net revenue for 2004 rose 14.6% to $729.3 million from $636.6 million in 2003, and
comparable stores sales for the year grew 9.9%. The revenue gain coupled with an increase in gross margin 
and effective cost control drove our bottom line improvement. 

2004 ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

During 2004, all of our business segments—retail, wholesale and licensing—achieved better
performance. Operating income increased by $34.9 million for the year. Our retail and wholesale segments 
led the operating income improvement with increases of $15.4 million and $11.2 million, respectively. 

Retail 

The 9.9% increase in comparable store sales for the year, which came on top of a 9.3% increase in 
2003, primarily reflects the continued growth in our men’s and accessories lines as well as the impact of our
new MARCIANO line, which debuted in 2004. This line, which features a more upscale, contemporary
assortment, has received a strong customer response and has been successful in appealing to a slightly
older, more sophisticated customer. In addition to strong results from our U.S. specialty stores, our 
Canadian stores also performed well during the year. 

Wholesale 

While we are still experiencing challenges in our wholesale segment, we have seen some
improvements in domestic gross margins and in our international operations. The wholesale segment 
revenues for 2004 increased 9.4% to $163.2 million from $149.1 million in 2003 reflecting the revenue
growth of our international operations. Gross margins improved to 35.6% in 2004 compared with 26.9% in 
2003. This improvement was driven by better performance of both the domestic and international
operations. 

Balance sheet

During the year, we continued to make strides in enhancing our financial strength and balance sheet. 
We ended the year with $109.7 million in cash and restricted cash versus $71.7 million a year ago, and we 
reduced our debt level by $13.3 million to $54.8 million at year-end. At December 31, 2004, cash and
restricted cash exceeded outstanding debt by $54.9 million, a $51.3 million improvement from a year 
earlier. 



Inventory 

Inventory management remains a key focus of our efforts. In 2004, in spite of a 14.3% increase in
product sales for the year and the addition of 22 new stores net of closures (representing a 6.1% increase
in average square footage), inventory declined by 1.4% to $82.3 million at year-end 2004 from 
$83.5 million a year-earlier. 

Gross margin 

We also saw improvements in gross margin during 2004 with all of the business segments contributing
to this improvement. Gross margin (gross profit as a percentage of total net revenue) improved to 37.6% 
for the year ended December 31, 2004, from 34.6% for the year ended December 31, 2003. 

New store concepts 

A key highlight of the year was the launch of our two new retail concepts, MARCIANO and GUESS?
Accessories stores. As of December 31, 2004, we had opened five MARCIANO stores, and our initial
results have been very positive. In the accessories area, we also saw the opportunity for a stand-alone retail 
concept, due to the ongoing strength of our performance in this high-margin category as well as the growth 
potential we identified for a high quality, branded accessories line at the compelling price points we offer. 
At year-end, six new GUESS? Accessories stores were in operation, also generating an initial favorable 
response. We plan to continue to test and monitor the performance of both concepts carefully, to make 
adjustments as necessary and to expand with new store openings on a selective basis going forward. At this 
time, we plan to open an additional seven MARCIANO stores and five GUESS? Accessories stores in
2005. 

Acquisition of European jeanswear licensee 

In December 2004, we entered into an agreement to purchase our European jeanswear licensee. This 
acquisition closed in January 2005 and provides us with a solid platform to expand our European 
operations. GUESS? has very strong brand recognition in Europe, but a low penetration of apparel sales, 
relative to both the size of the market and the sales of other GUESS? products in Europe, providing
excellent potential for growth. Our near-term goal is for this acquisition to add approximately $100 million 
in revenue in 2005 and to be slightly accretive to 2005 earnings. 

Licensing 

We recently signed a new license with Marc Fisher LLC to develop, manufacture, and distribute
athletic and fashion footwear under the GUESS? brand in the United States and several countries 
worldwide. We believe this is an important step in expanding our presence. Certainly, our own retail stores 
will serve as an important sales channel for GUESS? footwear, but we will also pursue additional
distribution channels in markets worldwide. We expect the new GUESS? footwear line of products to
begin shipping to stores in the second half of 2005. In addition, we have been working diligently with our 
new licensee Parlux Fragrances, Inc. on the development of our previously announced GUESS? fragrance 
due to launch in the third quarter, 2005. 



LOOKING TO THE FUTURE 

The actions we took in 2004 have laid a solid foundation for the future. Financially and operationally,
our Company is strong, and the growth initiatives we have underway are delivering promising results. Our 
efforts in 2005 will be focused on continuing our momentum and driving future performance through the 
following key strategies:

• Maintaining a relentless focus on our product lines and the sexy, contemporary styling for which the
GUESS? brand is known. We know that ultimately our success depends on having the right
product, and we are committed to continuing our fashion leadership and serving the needs of our
core customer. In addition, we plan to capitalize on current fashion trends, including a strong denim
cycle worldwide and high customer interest for contemporary styling. Denim has long been a core 
competency of GUESS?, and sales in this category are planned to be up approximately 25% in 2005 
versus 2004. The MARCIANO brand, which features a more upscale, contemporary assortment, 
will help us support the customer interest in contemporary styling. 

• Achieving further operating improvements to increase the efficiency of our business and reduce 
costs. Among the more significant initiatives underway are:

• Expanding our Hong Kong office to allow us to source directly from factories and move quality
control and other production functions upstream to improve development cycle time and 
reduce costs. 

• Increasing inventory turns through improved systems, better planning and effective logistics 
execution.

• Achieving further cost savings from reduced store expenses and improved overall productivity. 

• Pursuing the continued expansion of our core retail stores in the U.S. and Canada. We plan to open
a total of 24 new GUESS? stores in 2005, consisting of 11 full priced retail and 13 factory stores, in
addition to the seven MARCIANO and five GUESS? Accessories stores noted above. This will 
bring the number of new store openings to 36. We also plan to remodel about 24 stores this year 
and to relocate approximately five stores. We also plan to close approximately five stores during the
year. 

• Building a greater presence in Europe. We are in a strong position to consolidate and expand our 
presence in Europe using our existing business, Guess Italia, and our newly acquired jeanswear 
licensee as platforms. The jeanswear acquisition not only significantly expanded our wholesale 
business but also increased Guess’ retail presence in the European market with the addition of 10
stores in key cities such as Rome, Milan, Paris, Amsterdam and London. We will move forward to
take advantage of both the wholesale and retail opportunities in the attractive European market. 



• Growing our licensing business. As part of our long-term strategy to take full advantage of the 
power of the GUESS? brand, we will continue to explore opportunities to add to or expand our 
presence in key product categories and new territories through licensing or distribution agreements. 

In closing, let us reiterate our excitement about the future of GUESS?. We have excellent
opportunities ahead of us, an experienced and disciplined management team, and a solid financial
structure with ample resources to pursue our growth plans. 

Critical, of course, to meeting our long-term goals, are our GUESS? associates. We thank them for
their hard work and dedication and look forward to their ongoing contributions. We would also like to 
thank our suppliers and licensees in the U.S. and around the world, as well as our customers—we will work 
hard to continue to meet your needs. To our shareholders, we appreciate your continued confidence and
support, and we remain resolute in our commitment to drive shareholder value higher. 

We look forward to reporting on our future progress. 

Maurice Marciano Paul Marciano 
Co-Chairman of the Board and Co-Chairman of the Board and 
Co-Chief Executive Officer Co-Chief Executive Officer
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PART I 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS. 

Important Factors Regarding Forward-Looking Statements 

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including documents incorporated by reference 
herein, we make “forward-looking” statements, which are not historical facts, but are forward-looking 
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking
statements may also be in the Company’s other reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, in its 
press releases and in other documents. In addition, from time to time, the Company, through its
management, may make oral forward-looking statements. These statements relate to analyses and other 
information based on forecasts of future results and estimates of amounts not yet determinable. These
statements also relate to our future prospects and proposed new products, services, developments or 
business strategies. These forward-looking statements are identified by their use of terms and phrases such
as “anticipate”, “believe”, “could”, “estimate”, “expect”, “intend”, “may”, “plan”, “predict”, “project”, 
“will”, “continue”, and other similar terms and phrases, including references to assumptions. 

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in any of our forward-looking statements are
reasonable, actual results could differ materially from those projected or assumed. These forward-looking 
statements may include, among other things, statements relating to the Company’s expected results of
operations, the accuracy of data relating to, and anticipated levels of, future inventory and gross margins, 
anticipated cash requirements and sources, cost containment efforts, estimated charges, plans regarding store 
openings and closings, plans regarding business growth, e-commerce, business seasonality, industry trends,
consumer demands and preferences, competition and general economic conditions. Such statements involve
risks and uncertainties, which may cause actual results to differ materially from those set forth in these
statements. We do not intend, and undertake no obligation, to update our forward-looking statements to
reflect future events or circumstances. 

For additional information regarding forward-looking statements, refer to “Item 7. Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” contained herein. 

General 

Unless the context indicates otherwise, when we refer to “we,” “us” or the “Company” in this
Form 10-K, we are referring to Guess?, Inc. (“GUESS?”) and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. 

We design, market, distribute and license one of the world’s leading lifestyle collections of casual
apparel and accessories for men, women and children that reflect the American lifestyle and European 
fashion sensibilities. Our apparel is marketed under numerous trademarks including GUESS, GUESS?, 
GUESS U.S.A., GUESS Jeans, GUESS? and Triangle Design, Question Mark and Triangle Design, 
BRAND G, a stylized G, GUESS Kids, Baby GUESS and MARCIANO. The lines include full collections
of denim and cotton clothing, including jeans, pants, overalls, skirts, dresses, shorts, blouses, shirts, jackets 
and knitwear. We also selectively grant licenses to manufacture and distribute a broad range of products 
that complement our apparel lines, including eyewear, watches, handbags, footwear, kids’ and infants’
apparel, leather apparel, fragrance, jewelry and other fashion accessories. 

Our products are sold through three primary distribution channels: in our own stores, to a network of 
wholesale accounts and through the Internet. GUESS? branded products, some of which are produced 
under license, are also sold internationally through a series of licensees and distributors. Our core 
customer is a style-conscious consumer primarily between the ages of 15 and 30. These consumers are part
of a highly desirable demographic group that we believe is growing rapidly and has significant disposable 
income. We also appeal to customers outside this group through specialty product lines that include 
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MARCIANO, a more sophisticated fashion line targeted to women, and GUESS Kids, targeted to boys 
and girls ages six to 12. 

We were founded in 1981 and currently operate as a Delaware corporation.

Business Segments 

The business segments of the Company are retail, wholesale and licensing. In the first quarter of 2003, 
the Company revised its segment reporting to better reflect how its three business segments—retail, 
wholesale and licensing—are managed and each segment’s performance is evaluated. The earnings from 
operations for each segment now include those costs that are specifically related to each segment, 
consisting primarily of store operations, distribution, selling and merchandising, depreciation, amortization
and employee compensation directly related to that business segment. In addition, the Company is
continuing to allocate design and advertising charges to the business segments based on the assessed 
benefit derived from the respective expenditures. The new structure excludes from the segment results 
corporate overhead costs, which consist of shared costs of the organization. These costs are presented
separately and include, among others, the following corporate costs:  information technology, human
resources, accounting and finance, executive compensation, facilities and legal. Financial information about
each segment, together with certain geographical information, for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 are included under Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained herein. 

In 2004, 71.1% of our net revenue was generated from retail operations, 22.4% from wholesale 
operations and 6.5% from licensing operations. Our total net revenue in 2004 was $729.3 million and net 
earnings were $29.6 million. 

Business Strengths 

We believe we have several business strengths which help us to successfully execute our strategies. 
These business strengths include:

Brand Equity. We believe that our brand name is one of the most familiar in fashion and is one of
our most valuable assets. We believe the enduring strength of the GUESS? brand name and image is due 
mainly to our consistent emphasis on innovative and distinctive product designs that stand for exceptional
styling and quality. Our industry is highly competitive and subject to rapidly changing consumer
preferences and tastes. The success of our brand depends on our ability to anticipate the fashion 
preferences of our customers. We have a team of designers who, under the direction of Maurice Marciano, 
our Co-Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer, seeks to identify global fashion trends and interpret 
them for the style-conscious consumer while retaining the distinctive GUESS? image. Through our 
award-winning advertising, under the creative leadership and vision of Paul Marciano, our Co-Chairman 
and Co-Chief Executive Officer, we have achieved worldwide recognition of the GUESS? brand name. By 
retaining control over advertising and marketing activities from our headquarters in Los Angeles, we 
maintain the integrity, consistency and direction of the GUESS? brand image worldwide, while realizing
substantial cost savings when compared to the use of outside advertising agencies. 

We have developed the “GUESS? signature image” and “GUESS? lifestyle concept,” through the use
of our strong and distinctive images, merchandising display themes, logos, and trademarks which are 
registered in approximately 170 countries. 

Advertising and Marketing. We control all of our worldwide advertising, marketing activities and
promotional materials from our headquarters in Los Angeles. GUESS Jeans, GUESS U.S.A. and
Guess?, Inc. images have been showcased in dozens of major publications and in outdoor and broadcast
media throughout the U.S. and worldwide. Our advertising campaigns promote the GUESS? image with
our award winning advertising and a consistent emphasis on innovative and distinctive designs.
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We communicate this message through the use of our signature black and white print advertisements, 
as well as color print advertisements, designed by our in-house Advertising Department. Led by Paul 
Marciano, this team has won numerous awards and contributed to making the GUESS? brand one of the
most recognizable fashion brands. We have maintained a high degree of consistency in our advertisements 
by using similar themes and images. We require our licensees and distributors to invest a percentage of
their net sales of licensed products and net purchases of GUESS? products in Company-approved 
advertising, promotion and marketing. 

Retail Distribution. At December 31, 2004, we operated a total of 287 stores in the U.S. and
Canada, consisting of 186 full-price retail stores, 86 factory outlet stores, four kids stores and 11 new
concept stores, and four stores in Italy that are an integral part of our European design activities. Our
retail network creates an upscale and inviting shopping environment and enhances our image. Distribution
through our retail stores allows us to influence the merchandising and presentation of our products, build 
brand equity and test market new product design concepts. Our retail stores carry a full assortment of
men’s and women’s merchandise, including most of the GUESS? licensed products. Our factory outlet
stores are primarily located in outlet malls generally operating outside the shopping radius of our
wholesale customers and our own full-price retail stores. 

In 2004, we launched our MARCIANO line. This line was previously labeled as GUESS Collection
and was rebranded as MARCIANO in the third quarter of 2004. The new assortment commands higher 
price points and it targets a more upscale, contemporary customer. The MARCIANO line is available in 
approximately 120 of our full-price retail stores in the U.S. and Canada. As a test, we also opened five
MARCIANO stores in 2004 that feature this line exclusively and expect to open at least seven additional 
exclusive MARCIANO stores in 2005. These stores range in size between 2,000 and 4,000 square feet. 

In 2004, we also began testing a new Accessories store concept. We believe we offer unique
positioning in the accessory marketplace with a well-recognized brand name at a more accessible price
point than the luxury accessory brands. We opened six Accessories stores in 2004 and plan to open five
additional Accessories stores in 2005. These stores range in size between 1,000 and 3,000 square feet and
carry the full GUESS? accessory line. We continue to sell accessories in our full-price retail and factory 
outlet stores, and through our licensees. Our accessory products are also available in department stores. 

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we made the decision to exit the kids stores which were performing
below our expectations. During 2004, these stores generated $3.4 million in revenues and had a combined
operating loss of $1.9 million. At December 31, 2004, there were three kids retail stores and one kids
factory store still open. As of February 2005, we closed one of these kids stores and intend to close two
additional kids stores by year end. 

Licensee Stores. Our international licensees and distributors also operated 248 GUESS? stores in 
40 countries outside the U.S. and Canada at December 31, 2004. These stores carry apparel and
accessories that are similar to those sold in the U.S., including some that are tailored for local fashion 
sensibilities. We work closely with international licensees and distributors to ensure that their store designs 
and merchandise programs protect the reputation of the GUESS? trademarks. Our international licenses
and distribution agreements also allow for the sale of GUESS? brand products in better department stores 
and upscale specialty retail stores. 

Wholesale Distribution. We have both domestic and international wholesale distribution channels. 
Domestic wholesale customers consist primarily of better department stores and select specialty retailers
and upscale boutiques, which have the image and merchandising expertise that we require for the effective
presentation of our products. Leading domestic wholesale customers include Federated Department
Stores, Inc., The May Department Stores Company and Dillard’s, Inc.  At December 31, 2004, our 
products were sold directly to consumers from approximately 930 doors in the U.S. These locations include
541 shop-in-shops, an exclusive selling area within a department store that offers a wide array of our 
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products and incorporates GUESS? signage and fixture designs. These shop-in-shops allow us to reinforce 
the GUESS? brand image with our customers. Many department stores have more than one shop-in-shop, 
with each one featuring women’s or men’s apparel. Through our foreign subsidiaries and our network of
international distributors, our products are also found in major cities throughout Africa, Asia, Australia, 
Europe, the Middle East, North America and South America. 

Licensing Operations. The desirability of the GUESS? brand name among consumers has allowed 
us to selectively expand our product offerings and global markets through trademark licensing 
arrangements, with minimal capital investment or on-going operating expenses. We carefully select our
trademark licensees and approve in advance all product design, advertising and packaging materials of all
licensed products in order to maintain a consistent GUESS? image. We currently have 21 domestic and
international licenses that include eyewear, watches, handbags, footwear, kids’ and infants’ apparel, leather
apparel, fragrance, jewelry and other fashion accessories. We have granted licenses for the manufacture or 
sale of GUESS? branded products in markets which include Africa, Asia, Australia, Europe, the Middle 
East, North America and South America. 

Business Growth Strategies

We regularly evaluate and implement initiatives that we believe will build brand equity, grow our 
business and enhance profitability. Our key growth strategies are as follows:

Leveraging the GUESS? Brand. We believe the GUESS? brand is an integral part of our business, a
significant strategic asset and a primary source of sustainable competitive advantage. It communicates a
distinctive image that is fun, fashionable and sexy. Brand loyalty, name awareness, perceived quality, strong 
brand images, public relations, publicity, promotional events and trademarks all contribute to brand
integrity. Our design teams visit the world’s premier fashion locations in order to identify important style
trends and to discover new fabrics. We will continue this practice while promoting our innovative designs 
through stylish advertising campaigns that advance the GUESS? image. Our marketing programs are
designed to convey a uniform style image for the brand and are aimed at increasing the desire of the target
group to join our GUESS? customer group. 

Acquisition Strategy. We evaluate strategic acquisitions and alliances that support and contribute to
our overall growth approach. On December 31, 2004, we entered into an agreement with Fingen S.p.A.
and Fingen Apparel N.V. (collectively, the “Sellers”), to acquire the remaining 90% of the shares not 
already owned by the Company of Maco Apparel, S.p.A. (“Maco”), the Italian licensee of GUESS 
jeanswear for men and women in Europe as well as the assets and leases of certain retail stores in Europe. 
The agreement includes the purchase of inventory and receivables, the assumption of certain liabilities, 
and the transfer of leases for the GUESS retail locations. The stores are located in Rome, Milan, Paris, 
Amsterdam, London, and certain other European cities. We believe the Maco acquisition provides a solid
platform to take advantage of GUESS’ already strong name recognition in Europe. For 2005, our goal for
this acquisition, which closed on January 3, 2005, is to add approximately $100 million in revenues and to
be slightly accretive to earnings. 

Retail Store Strategy and Expansion Plans. Our retail growth strategy is to increase retail sales and
profitability by expanding our network of retail stores and improving the performance of existing stores. 
During 2004, we opened a total of 34 new stores consisting of nine new full-price retail stores, 14 factory
outlet stores and 11 new concept stores, while closing 12 stores in the U.S. and Canada. 

Our retail locations build brand awareness and contribute to market penetration and growth of the
brand in concert with our wholesale operations. In 2004, we increased our retail square footage by 6.1% to
1,460,000 square feet in the U.S. and Canada. We continue to be very selective with new store locations 
and expect to open approximately 36 new stores in 2005, consisting of 11 full-price retail and 13 factory 
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outlet stores, in addition to the 12 new concept stores. In addition, we plan to remodel or relocate
approximately 24 stores. We also plan to close approximately five stores in 2005. 

In 2004, total sales in the U.S. and Canada at our stores open for at least one year (also called 
“comparable store sales”) increased by 9.9% from 2003 levels. We believe the increase in comparable store 
sales is attributable to our commitment to several ongoing initiatives, including leadership in new product
development, a more fashion-focused product mix, improvements in merchandising and visual 
presentation, the remodeling of select stores to promote a consistent brand message, a new retail store 
inventory allocation system, the introduction of the MARCIANO line and the development of a motivated
team of sales professionals to service our customers and provide a favorable shopping experience. 

The look and feel of GUESS? retail and factory outlet stores play an important role in building our 
brand equity. To enhance the quality of our presentation, we remodeled or relocated 17 stores during 2004
and plan to remodel or relocate approximately 24 stores during 2005. 

As part of our retail growth strategy we are also placing additional emphasis on our Accessories line 
and MARCIANO line, which replaced our GUESS Collection line in 2004. This includes greater focus on 
these products in our existing stores as well as developing new concept stores in order to exclusively feature 
these products. 

During 2004, we opened 11 new concept stores, consisting of five MARCIANO and six Accessories 
stores. While it is still early, and we plan to monitor the performance of these stores carefully, we are
encouraged by the response we are seeing. These new store concepts leverage our brand recognition and
the reputation we have for sexy, contemporary styling to extend our brand into new areas. The
MARCIANO brand is attracting a slightly older, more sophisticated customer, while the Accessories stores 
are enabling us to build a more meaningful presence in this high-margin segment. We are targeting 
customers who already shop GUESS? stores but are looking for an expanded accessories presentation, as 
well as new customers who did not shop GUESS? in the past. 

Continue to Develop Licensee Portfolio and Expand International Business. One of our primary 
objectives is to maintain the quality and reputation of the GUESS? brand. In order to accomplish this goal, 
we will continue to strategically reposition our licensing portfolio by constantly monitoring and evaluating
the performance of our licensees worldwide and their strength and capabilities to appropriately represent
our brand. As part of this process, we will consider bringing in-house apparel licenses, where appropriate, 
or license lines which we produce as we did with our kids business in 2001. If we determine that licensees
are performing inadequately, we will, from time to time, discontinue the existing relationship and seek out
a stronger replacement licensee. 

As previously mentioned, on December 31, 2004, we entered into an agreement with Fingen S.p.A. 
and Fingen Apparel N.V., to acquire the remaining 90% of the shares not already owned by the Company
of Maco, the Italian licensee of GUESS jeanswear for men and women in Europe, as well as the assets and 
leases of certain retail stores in Europe. 

In 2004, we signed a new shoe license with Marc Fisher LLC to develop, manufacture, and distribute
athletic and fashion footwear under the GUESS? trademark in the U.S. and several countries worldwide.
We believe this is an important step in expanding our presence both domestically and globally in GUESS?
footwear. In 2003, we granted a new worldwide license for fragrances and related products. We will 
continue to strategically examine opportunities to expand our licensee portfolio by developing new 
licensees that can expand our brand penetration and compliment the GUESS? image.

We believe there are significant growth opportunities in international markets. We are working closely
with our international licensees and distributors to develop these opportunities and to expand the 
availability of the GUESS? brand throughout the world. In 2003, we granted a new license to manufacture
and distribute children’s clothing in certain territories of Europe. 
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Improved Product Sourcing. Over the past several years, we have refocused our product sourcing
strategies to increase efficiencies, reduce costs and improve quality. We currently purchase approximately 
84% of our finished products from international vendors, primarily in Asia and Mexico. This is a
significant change from years ago when we purchased the majority of our goods from domestic sources. We 
have increased our utilization of lower-cost, offshore “packaged purchases” in which we supply the product
design and fabric selection, and the vendor manufactures and delivers the finished product. We have
strategically aligned ourselves with sourcing vendors worldwide, who will take full responsibility for 
delivering quality, finished products in a timely manner. By continuing to use these packaged programs, we
believe we can improve product gross margins, reduce carrying costs of raw materials and improve the
timing of our deliveries and product quality. We also retain a close relationship with a number of domestic
vendors located primarily in Los Angeles as we believe it is important to react to last minute trends as well
as to respond to rush reorders. 

Logistics. In 2000, we opened an automated distribution center in Louisville, Kentucky to replace 
the distribution center in Los Angeles as our primary distribution center. This 500,000 square-foot facility
is near United Parcel Service’s national transit hub and has contributed to the reduction of our shipping
time to our stores and wholesale accounts that are east of the Mississippi River. Depending on processing 
volumes and productivity improvements, we expect that we will continue to reduce operating cost per unit
by reducing handling costs in the new facility and will provide better service to our customers by faster 
shipping and reduced response times. As of December 31, 2004, this facility was approximately 50%
utilized. 

We focused on all aspects of our supply chain in 2004 and expect to continue in 2005. This has
included the implementation of new systems such as the installation of an automated product sorter 
machine in the Kentucky distribution center in the fourth quarter of 2004 which should improve operating 
efficiencies through automation. These systems, along with other actions we are taking, should result in 
lower processing and freight costs in the future. 

E-Commerce. Our websites, www.guess.com, www.guessfactory.com and www.marciano.com, are 
virtual storefronts that promote our brands. Designed as customer shopping centers, these sites showcase
our products in an easy-to-navigate format, allowing customers to see and purchase our collections of
casual apparel and accessories. Not only have these virtual stores become a successful additional retail 
distribution channel, but also they have improved customer service and are fun and entertaining
alternative-shopping environments. These sites also provide fashion information, provide a mechanism for 
customer feedback, promote customer loyalty and enhance our brand identity through interactive content. 
In 2004, these combined sites generated net sales comparable with the top retail GUESS? stores in the
chain. 

GUESS? Products 

We derive net revenue from three primary sources: the sale of our men’s and women’s apparel, and
the sale of our licensees’ products through our network of retail and factory outlet stores in the U.S. and
Canada; the sale of GUESS? men’s and women’s apparel worldwide to wholesale customers and 
distributors; and royalties from worldwide licensing activities. 
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The following table sets forth our net revenue from our business segments:

Year Ended December 31, 
 2004  2003  2002

(dollars in thousands) 
Net revenue:
Retail operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 518,855 71.1% $ 447,693 70.3% $ 384,456 65.9%
Wholesale operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  163,165 22.4 149,113 23.5 159,625 27.4

Net revenue from product sales . . . . . . .  682,020 93.5 596,806 93.8 544,081 93.3
Licensing operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  47,242 6.5 39,779 6.2 39,058 6.7

Total net revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 729,262 100.0% $ 636,585 100.0% $ 583,139 100.0%

Products. Our product line is organized into two primary categories: men’s and women’s apparel. To
take advantage of contemporary trends, we complement our core basic styles with more fashion-oriented 
items. Within our basic denim assortment, we have added new denim fabrics and washes. In addition, we 
have also added “immediates” and “nows” to our merchandise assortment; these are fashion forward styles
that complement our current product line and are produced on an expedited basis. 

Our line of women’s apparel also includes the MARCIANO product line, a full collection of better
women’s  apparel incorporating a sophisticated, high fashion combination of colors and styles. These 
products currently are sold primarily through our GUESS? retail stores, our MARCIANO stores and our 
www.marciano.com website. The MARCIANO line is designed to complement our young contemporary 
line. We believe these products have significant potential and we are placing additional emphasis on this 
line in 2005 to increase its penetration in the marketplace. 

Licensed Products. The high level of desirability of the GUESS? brand among consumers has 
allowed us to selectively expand our product offerings and distribution channels worldwide through 
trademark licensing arrangements. We currently have 21 trademark licenses. Worldwide sales of licensed 
products (as reported to us by our licensees) were approximately $616 million in 2004. Our net royalties 
from these sales, including advances and renewal fees, were $47.2 million in 2004. Approximately 67.5% of
our net royalties were derived from our top five licensees in 2004 and approximately 70.2% were derived
from our domestic licensees. 

Design 

Under the direction of Maurice Marciano, GUESS? and MARCIANO products are designed by an
in-house staff of three design teams (men’s, women’s, and MARCIANO) located in Los Angeles,
California. Our design teams travel throughout the world in order to monitor fashion trends and discover 
new fabrics. Fabric shows in Europe, Asia and the U.S. provide additional opportunities to discover and 
sample new fabrics. These fabrics, together with the trends observed by our designers, serve as the primary 
source of inspiration for our lines and collections. We also maintain a fashion library consisting of antique
and contemporary garments as another source of creative concepts. In addition, our design teams regularly
meet with members of the sales, merchandising and retail operations teams to further refine our products 
to meet the particular needs of our markets. 
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Domestic Retail Operations 

At December 31, 2004, our domestic retail operations, which includes stores in both the U.S. and 
Canada, consisted of 186 full-price retail, 86 factory outlet, four kids and 11 new concept stores which sell
GUESS? and MARCIANO-labeled products and which we own and operate directly. Below is a summary 
of store statistics as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. 

December 31, 
 2004  2003  2002

Retail stores: 
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  150 147 138
Canada . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  36 35 33

 186 182  171
Factory stores: 

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  75 66 60
Canada . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 7 7

 86 73  67
New concept stores:

MARCIANO. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 — —
Accessories. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 — —

11 
Kids stores: 4 10  11
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  287 265 249

Square footage at year end . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,460,000 1,372,000 1,277,000

Sales per average annual square foot . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 369 $ 336 $ 312

Retail Stores. At December 31, 2004, our full price domestic retail stores occupied approximately
943,000 square feet and ranged in size from approximately 2,000 to 13,500 square feet, with most stores 
between 3,000 and 6,000 square feet. Our retail stores carry a full assortment of men’s and women’s 
GUESS? merchandise, including most of our licensed products as well as MARCIANO, our recently
introduced line that is carried exclusively in our stores. At December 31, 2004, our domestic GUESS kids 
stores occupied approximately 11,000 square feet and carried our girls’ and boys’ lines which have been 
supplied by one of our licensees since the spring of 2002, as well as infant’s clothing, which is supplied by
the same licensee. In the fourth quarter of 2003, we made the decision to exit the kids stores which were 
performing below our expectations. All but four kids stores were closed by the end of 2004. During 2004,
we opened nine new retail stores, closed five stores and six kids stores. Sales per square foot for our full
price domestic retail stores, not including factory outlet or new concept stores, increased from $332 in 2003
to $369 in 2004. 

Factory Outlet Stores. At December 31, 2004, our domestic factory outlet stores occupied
approximately 481,000 square feet and ranged in size from approximately 2,700 to 10,700 square feet, with
most stores between 5,000 and 6,000 square feet. They are primarily located in outlet malls generally
operating outside the shopping radius of our wholesale customers and our full-price retail stores. These
stores sell selected styles of GUESS? apparel and licensed products at a discount to value-conscious
customers. We also use the factory outlet stores to liquidate excess inventory and thereby protect the
GUESS? image. During 2004, we opened 14 new factory stores and closed one store. Sales per square foot
for our domestic factory outlet stores increased from $345 in 2003 to $367 in 2004. 

New Concept Stores. In 2004 we opened our first five MARCIANO and six Accessories concept 
stores. We plan to continue to test and monitor the performance of these new store concepts carefully.
These concepts leverage the name recognition of our brands and the reputation we have for sexy, 
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contemporary styling to extend our brand into new areas. The MARCIANO brand is attracting a slightly
older, more sophisticated customer, while the Accessories stores are enabling us to build a more 
meaningful presence in this high-margin segment. 

Domestic Wholesale Customers 

Our domestic wholesale customers consist primarily of better department stores and select specialty
retailers and upscale boutiques, which have the image and merchandising expertise that we require for the 
effective presentation of our products. Leading domestic wholesale customers include Federated 
Department Stores, Inc., The May Department Stores Company and Dillard’s, Inc. During 2004, our
products were sold directly to consumers from approximately 930 doors in the U.S.

A major element of our merchandising strategy is our focus on trend right products supported by key 
fashion basics. For the women’s line, we are capitalizing on feminine looks and denim, with an emphasis to
grow the basics categories. The men’s line is more updated with natural rugged fabrics and fashion denim 
with new washes. 

We have sales representatives in our showrooms in New York and Los Angeles. They coordinate with 
customers to determine the inventory level and product mix that should be carried in each store to
maximize retail sell-throughs and enhance the customers’ profit margins. The inventory level and product 
mix are then used as the basis for developing sales projections and product needs for each wholesale 
customer and for scheduling production. Additionally, we use merchandise coordinators who work with 
the stores to ensure that our products are displayed appropriately. 

A few of our domestic wholesale customers, including some under common ownership, have
accounted for significant portions of our net revenue. During 2004, Bloomingdale’s, Macy’s and other 
affiliated stores owned by Federated Department Stores, Inc. were our largest domestic wholesale 
customers and together accounted for approximately 5.1% of our net revenue. 

International Business 

We derive net revenue and earnings outside the U.S. and Canada from two principal sources: (a) sales 
of GUESS? brand apparel directly to seven foreign distributors who distribute it to better department
stores, upscale specialty retail stores and GUESS?-licensed retail stores operated by our international
distributors and (b) royalties from licensees who manufacture and distribute GUESS? branded products
outside the U.S. We sell products through distributors and licensees throughout Africa, Asia, Australia, 
Europe, the Middle East, North America and South America. 

At December 31, 2004, our licensees and distributors operated internationally (outside the U.S. and 
Canada) 248 GUESS? retail and outlet stores and in-store shops. Our retail store license agreements 
generally provide detailed guidelines for store fixtures and merchandising programs. The appearance,
merchandising and service standards of these stores are closely monitored to ensure that our image and
brand integrity are maintained. We have been advised by our distributors and licensees that in 2005 they 
plan to open approximately 120 new retail stores and in-store shops and to remodel approximately 50
existing locations. We also own and operate four GUESS? retail stores in Italy. As part of our acquisition
of Maco, we will own ten additional stores in Europe. 

As previously mentioned, on December 31, 2004, we entered into an agreement with Fingen S.p.A. 
and Fingen Apparel N.V., to acquire the remaining 90% of the shares not already owned by the Company
of Maco, the Italian licensee of GUESS jeanswear for men and women in Europe as well as the assets and
leases of certain retail stores in Europe. This transaction closed in January, 2005. 
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License Agreements and Terms 

Our trademark license agreements customarily provide for a three- to five-year initial term with a
possible option to renew prior to expiration for an additional multi-year period. In addition to licensing
trademarks for products which complement our apparel products, we have granted trademark licenses for 
the manufacture and sale of GUESS? branded products similar to ours, including men’s and women’s 
denim and knitwear, in markets such as Europe, Japan, the Philippines, Mexico, South Africa and South 
Korea. Licenses granted to certain licensees that have produced high-quality products and have
demonstrated solid operating performance, such as GUESS? Handbags and GUESS? Eyewear, have been
renewed and in some cases expanded to include new products or markets. In other cases, products that
were formerly licensed, such as our women’s knits line, are now being produced in-house. The typical
license agreement requires that the licensee pay us the greater of a royalty based on a percentage of the
licensee’s net sales of licensed products or a guaranteed annual minimum royalty that typically increases
over the term of the license agreement. Generally, licensees are required to spend a percentage of the net 
sales of licensed products for advertising and promotion of the licensed products and in many cases we 
place the ads on behalf of the licensee and are reimbursed. In addition, to protect and increase the value of 
our trademarks, our license agreements include strict quality control and manufacturing standards. 

Our Licensing Department meets regularly with licensees to ensure consistency with our overall 
merchandising and design strategies, to monitor quality control and to protect the GUESS? trademark and
brand. The Licensing Department approves in advance all GUESS? licensed products, advertising, 
promotional and packaging materials. 

Advertising and Marketing

Our advertising, public relations and marketing strategy is designed to promote a consistent high 
impact image which endures regardless of changing consumer trends. Since our inception, Paul Marciano
has had principal responsibility for the GUESS? brand image and creative vision. All worldwide
advertising and promotional material is controlled through our Advertising Department based in Los
Angeles. GUESS Jeans, GUESS U.S.A. and GUESS?, Inc. images have been showcased in dozens of 
major publications and outdoor and broadcast media throughout the U.S. and the world. 

Our advertising strategy promotes the GUESS? image and products, with an emphasis on brand
image. Our signature black and white print advertisements, as well as color print advertisements, have
garnered prestigious awards, including Clio, Belding and Mobius awards for creativity and excellence.
These awards, which we have received on numerous occasions in our history, are generally given based on
the judgment of prominent members of the advertising industry. We have maintained a high degree of 
consistency in our advertisements, using similar themes and images. We require our licensees and
distributors to invest a percentage of their net sales of licensed products and net purchases of GUESS?
products in approved advertising, promotion and marketing. 

Our Advertising Department is responsible for all worldwide advertising, which includes approval of 
all advertising strategies and media placements from our licensees and distributors. We use a variety of 
media which emphasizes print and outdoor advertising. We have focused advertisement placement in 
national and international contemporary fashion/beauty and lifestyle magazines including Vanity Fair, 
Marie Claire, Elle, W and Vogue. By retaining control over our advertising programs, we are able to 
maintain the integrity of the GUESS? brand image while realizing substantial cost savings compared to
outside agencies. 

We further strengthen communications with customers through our websites (www.guess.com, 
www.guessfactory.com and www.marciano.com). These global media enable us to provide timely 
information in an entertaining fashion to consumers about our history, products and store locations, and
allow us to receive and respond directly to customer feedback. 
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Sourcing and Product Development 

We source products through numerous suppliers, many of whom have established long-term 
relationships with us. We seek to achieve the most efficient means for timely delivery of our products. Our
fabric specialists work with fabric mills in the U.S., Mexico, Europe and Asia to develop woven and knitted 
fabrics that enhance the products’ comfort, design and appearance. For a substantial portion of our 
apparel products, production planning takes place generally four to five months prior to the corresponding
selling season. Delivery of certain basic products is accomplished through our Quick Response EDI 
(Electronic Data Interchange) replenishment system which ensures shipment of such products generally
within 48 hours of receipt of customer orders. 

We do not own any production equipment. To remain competitive, in recent years we have
increasingly sourced our finished products globally. During 2004, we sourced approximately 84% of our 
finished products from third-party suppliers located outside the U.S. Most of these finished products are 
acquired as package purchases where we supply the design and fabric selection and the vendor delivers the
finished product. Although we have long-term relationships with many of our vendors, we do not have
long-term written agreements with them. Our production and sourcing staff in Los Angeles oversees 
aspects of apparel manufacturing, quality control and production, and researches and develops new 
sources of supply. In 2005, we plan to expand our Hong Kong office to allow us to source directly from
overseas factories and move quality control and other production functions upstream to reduce 
development costs and improve development cycle time. 

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials 

Our products use a variety of raw materials, principally consisting of woven denim, woven cotton and 
knitted fabrics and yarns. Historically, we make commitments for a significant portion of our fabric well in 
advance of sales. 

Quality Control 

Our quality control program is designed to ensure that products meet our high quality standards. We 
monitor the quality of our fabrics prior to the production of garments and inspect prototypes of each
product before production runs commence. We also perform random in-line quality control checks during 
and after production before the garments leave the contractor. Final random inspections occur when the
garments are received in our distribution centers. We believe that our policy of inspecting our products at 
our distribution centers and at the vendors’ facilities is important to maintain the quality, consistency and
reputation of our products. 

Distribution Centers 

We utilize distribution centers at strategically located sites. Until 1999, distribution of our products in 
the U.S. was centralized in our facility in Los Angeles, California, which we operate and lease from a
related party. In January 2000, we opened an automated distribution center in Louisville, Kentucky, to 
replace the distribution center in Los Angeles as our primary distribution center. This facility was fully 
operational in the second quarter of 2000. Distribution of our products in Canada is handled from our
distribution center in Montreal, Canada. At December 31, 2004, we also owned ten-percent of our
European jeanswear licensee, Maco, which utilizes a distribution center in Florence, Italy owned by an 
affiliate of Maco and services Europe. Additionally, we utilize a contract warehouse in Hong Kong that
services the Pacific Rim. 

At our distribution center in Kentucky, we use fully integrated and automated distribution systems. 
The bar code scanning of merchandise, picking tickets and distribution cartons, together with radio
frequency communications, provide timely, controlled, accurate and instantaneous updates to the
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distribution information systems. As of December 31, 2004, this facility was approximately 50% utilized.
We continue to monitor our distribution center integration as our business grows and the center matures. 

Competition 

The apparel industry is highly competitive and fragmented, and is subject to rapidly changing
consumer demands and preferences. We believe that our success depends in large part upon our ability to
anticipate, gauge and respond to changing consumer demands and fashion trends in a timely manner and
upon the continued appeal to consumers of the GUESS? brand. We compete with numerous apparel 
manufacturers and distributors and several well-known designers that have recently entered or re-entered
the designer denim market. Our retail and factory outlet stores face competition from other retailers,
including some of our major wholesale customers. Our licensed apparel and accessories also compete with
a substantial number of designer and non-designer lines and various other well-known brands. Many of our
competitors, including The Gap, Abercrombie & Fitch, DKNY, Polo Ralph Lauren and Tommy Hilfiger, 
among others, have greater financial resources than we do. Although the level and nature of competition
differ among our product categories, we believe that we compete on the basis of our brand image, quality 
of design, workmanship and product assortment. 

Information Systems 

We believe that high levels of automation and technology are essential to maintain our competitive
position and support our strategic objectives and we continue to invest in computer hardware, system 
applications and networks. Our computer information systems consist of a full range of financial,
distribution, merchandising, in-store, supply chain and other systems. During 2004, we completed the
implementation of a new supply chain system and a retail store inventory allocation system. 

Trademarks 

We own numerous trademarks, including GUESS, GUESS?, GUESS U.S.A., GUESS Jeans, 
GUESS? and Triangle Design, MARCIANO, Question Mark and Triangle Design, BRAND G, a stylized
G and a stylized M, GUESS Kids, Baby GUESS, and GUESS Collection. As of December 31, 2004, we
had approximately 2,200 U.S. and internationally registered trademarks or trademark applications pending 
with the trademark offices in 173 countries around the world, including the U.S. From time to time, we
adopt new trademarks in connection with the marketing of new product lines. We consider our trademarks 
to have significant value in the marketing of our products and act aggressively to register and protect our 
trademarks worldwide. 

Like many well-known brands, our trademarks are subject to infringement. We have staff devoted to 
the monitoring and aggressive protection of our trademarks worldwide. 

See “Important Factors Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” included in “Item 7. Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” contained herein. 

Wholesale Backlog 

We maintain a model stock program in our basic denim products which generally allows 
replenishment of a customer’s inventory within 48 hours. We typically receive orders for our fashion 
apparel 90 to 120 days prior to the time the products are delivered to stores. At February 26, 2005, we had 
unfilled wholesale orders in the U.S., consisting primarily of orders for fashion apparel, of approximately
$38.5 million, compared to $32.9 million for such orders at February 28, 2004. The backlog of wholesale
orders at any given time is affected by various factors, including seasonality and the scheduling of 
manufacturing and shipment of products. Accordingly, a comparison of backlogs of wholesale orders from 
period to period is not necessarily meaningful and may not be indicative of eventual actual shipments. 
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Employees 

We strongly believe that our employees (“associates”) are our most valuable resources. As of
January 2005, there were approximately 6,800 associates, including corporate personnel employed by
GUESS in the U.S. and Canada. Associates include approximately 700 in our wholesale and corporate 
operations and 6,100 in our retail operations. 

We are not a party to any labor agreements and none of our associates is represented by a labor 
union. We consider our relationship with our associates to be good. 

Environmental Matters

We are subject to federal, state and local laws, regulations and ordinances that govern activities or 
operations that may have adverse environmental effects (such as emissions to air, discharges to water, and
the generation, handling, storage and disposal of solid and hazardous wastes). We are also subject to laws,
regulations and ordinances that impose liability for the costs of clean up or other remediation of 
contaminated property, including damages from spills, disposals or other releases of hazardous substances
or wastes, in certain circumstances without regard to fault. Certain of our operations routinely involve the 
handling of chemicals and wastes, some of which are or may become regulated as hazardous substances.
We have not incurred, and do not expect to incur, any significant expenditures or liabilities for
environmental matters. As a result, we believe that our environmental obligations will not have a material 
adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations. 

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

See Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion regarding our domestic and 
foreign operations. 

Website Access to Our Periodic SEC Reports 

We make available free of charge at www.guess.com our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly 
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished 
to the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as soon as reasonably practicable after
we electronically file them with, or furnish them to, the SEC. In addition, the charters of our Board of
Directors’ Audit, Compensation and Nominating and Governance Committees as well as the Board of 
Directors’ Governance Guidelines and our Code of Conduct are posted on our website. We may from time
to time provide important disclosures to our investors by posting them in the investor info section of the
Guess?, Inc. portion of the website, as allowed by SEC rules. Printed copies of these documents may be
obtained by writing or telephoning us at Guess?, Inc., 1444 South Alameda Street, Los Angeles, 
California 90021, (213)765-5578, Attention: Investor Relations. 
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ITEM 2. Properties. 

Certain information concerning our principal facilities, all of which are leased at December 31, 2004, 
is set forth below: 

Location  Use

Approximate
Area in

Square Feet
1444 South Alameda Street
Los Angeles, California 

Principal executive and administrative offices, design
facilities, sales offices, distribution and warehouse 
facilities, production control, and sourcing used by our
Wholesale and Retail segments, and our Corporate
groups  

355,000

1610 Freeport Drive 
Louisville, Kentucky 

Distribution and warehousing facility used by our 
Wholesale and Retail segments 

506,000

144 S. Beverly Drive
Beverly Hills, California 

Administrative offices 1,200

1385 Broadway 
New York, New York 

Administrative offices, public relations, and showrooms 
used by our Wholesale and Retail segments 

36,000

110 E. Ninth Street
Los Angeles, California 

Showrooms used by our Wholesale segment 4,400

Montreal/Toronto, Canada Administrative offices and warehouse facilities used by 
our Wholesale and Retail segments 

76,000

Kowloon, Hong Kong Distribution and licensing coordination facilities used by 
our Wholesale segment 

4,400

Florence/Milan, Italy Administrative office and showrooms used by our 
Wholesale segment 

30,700

Our corporate, wholesale and retail headquarters and certain production and warehousing facilities 
are located in Los Angeles, California and in Beverly Hills, California, consisting of five buildings totaling
approximately 356,200 square feet. All of these properties are leased by us, and certain of these facilities 
are leased from limited partnerships in which the sole partners are trusts controlled by and for the benefit
of Maurice Marciano and Paul Marciano (the “Principal Stockholders”), Armand Marciano, their brother 
and former executive of the Company, and their families pursuant to leases that expire in February 2006
and July 2008. The total lease payments to these limited partnerships are $228,000 per month with
aggregate minimum lease commitments to these partnerships at December 31, 2004, totaling
approximately $9.7 million. See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information 
regarding related party transactions. 

Through early 2000, distribution of our products in the U.S. was centralized in our Los Angeles,
California facility. In 2000, we leased an automated distribution center in Louisville, Kentucky, to replace 
the distribution center in Los Angeles as our primary distribution center. Our Canadian business operates 
a distribution facility located in Montreal, Canada. At December 31, 2004, we also owned ten-percent of 
our European jeanswear licensee, Maco, which utilizes a distribution center in Florence, Italy owned by an
affiliate of Maco and services Europe. Additionally, we utilize a contract warehouse in Hong Kong that
services the Pacific Rim. 

We lease our showrooms, advertising, licensing, sales and merchandising offices, remote distribution 
and warehousing facility and retail and factory outlet store locations under non-cancelable operating lease 
agreements expiring on various dates through March 2016. These facilities are located principally in the 
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U.S., with aggregate minimum lease commitments, at December 31, 2004, totaling approximately $440.9
million. 

The current terms of our store leases, excluding renewal options, expire as follows: 

Years Lease Terms Expire Number of Stores 
2005-2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101
2008-2010 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 84
2011-2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53
2014-2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

We believe our existing facilities are well maintained, in good operating condition and are adequate to
support our present level of operations. See Notes 10 and 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 
further information regarding current lease obligations. 

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings. 

Most major corporations, particularly those operating retail businesses, become involved from time to
time in a variety of employment-related claims and other matters incidental to their business. In the
opinion of our management, the resolution of any of these pending incidental matters is not expected to
have a material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations or financial condition; however, we
cannot predict the outcome of these matters. 

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders. 

No matters were submitted to a vote during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004. 
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PART II

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters. 

Since August 8, 1996, the Company’s common stock has been listed on the New York Stock Exchange
under the symbol ‘GES.’ The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales
prices of the Company’s Common Stock, as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape:

 High Low 
Year ended December 31, 2004
First Quarter 2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $17.62 $11.17 
Second Quarter 2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19.40 13.90 
Third Quarter 2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18.03 14.38 
Fourth Quarter 2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17.99 11.71 

Year ended December 31, 2003
First Quarter 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4.24 $ 3.30 
Second Quarter 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.60 3.38 
Third Quarter 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9.80 5.85 
Fourth Quarter 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15.60 8.39 

On March 1, 2005, the closing sales price per share of the Company’s common stock, as reported on the 
New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape, was $14.47. On March 1, 2005, there were 225 holders of record 
of the Company’s common stock. 

Dividend Policy 

We intend to use our cash flow from operations in 2005 primarily to fund principal payments, the 
acquisition of Maco, expansion and remodeling of our retail stores, shop-in-shop programs, systems,
infrastructure and operations. Any future determination as to the payment of dividends will be at the 
discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors and will depend upon our results of operations, financial 
condition, contractual restrictions and other factors deemed relevant by the Board of Directors. The 
agreement governing our revolving Credit Facility restricts the payment of dividends by the Company. 
Since our initial public offering on August 8, 1996, we have not declared any dividends on our common 
stock. 
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data. 

The selected financial data set forth below have been derived from the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and the related notes thereto. The following selected financial data should be
read in conjunction with the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and the related Notes
contained herein and with “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations.” 

Year Ended December 31, 
2004 2003 2002 2001  2000

(in thousands, except per share data) 
Statement of operations data: 

Net revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 729,262 $ 636,585 $ 583,139 $ 677,620 $ 779,217
Earnings (loss) from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55,482 20,600 (8,526) 23,829 42,468
Income taxes (benefit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,147 5,500 (5,550) 4,500 13,100
Net earnings (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29,566 7,286 (11,282) 6,242 16,493

Earnings (loss) per share: 
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.67 $ 0.17 $ (0.26) $ 0.14 $ 0.38
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.66 $ 0.17 $ (0.26) $ 0.14 $ 0.38

Weighted number of shares outstanding—basic . .  44,010 43,279 43,392 43,656 43,464
Weighted number of shares outstanding—

diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  44,544 43,558 43,392 43,958 43,819

 December 31, 
2004 2003 2002 2001  2000

Balance sheet data: 
Working capital(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $138,224 $ 99,769 $ 21,426 $ 95,263 $ 96,289
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  424,304 362,765 349,532 362,463 419,683
Notes payable and long-term debt, excluding 

current installments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  41,396 54,161 1,480 80,119 103,781
Stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  220,577 182,782 166,280 177,924 175,156

(1) Working capital at December 31, 2002, reflects the $79.6 million of 91⁄2% Senior Subordinated Notes 
due 2003 as current debt and therefore a reduction in working capital. 

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. 

Summary 

We derive our net revenue from the sale of GUESS? men’s and women’s apparel, MARCIANO
women’s apparel and our licensees’ products through our network of retail and factory outlet stores in the
U.S. and Canada, from the sale of GUESS? men’s and women’s apparel worldwide to wholesale customers 
and distributors, from net royalties from worldwide licensing activities, from the sale of GUESS? apparel
through the wholesale channel of our 100% owned Canadian subsidiary, GUESS? Canada Corporation
(“Guess Canada”), and from the sale of GUESS? men’s and women’s apparel and our licensee products 
through our on-line stores at www.guess.com, www.guessfactory.com and www.marciano.com. 

The business segments of the Company are wholesale, retail and licensing operations. Management 
evaluates segment performance based primarily on revenue and earnings from operations. Information
relating to these segments is summarized in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
earnings from operations for each segment include those costs that are specifically related to each 
segment, consisting primarily of store operations, distribution, selling and merchandising, depreciation, 
amortization and employee compensation directly related to that business segment. In addition, the 
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Company is continuing to allocate design and advertising charges to the business segments based on the
assessed benefit derived from the respective expenditures. This structure excludes from the segment results
corporate overhead costs, which consist of shared costs of the organization. These costs are presented
separately and include, among others, the following corporate costs: information technology, human 
resources, accounting and finance, executive compensation, facilities and legal. 

Executive Summary 

During 2004, GUESS? continued to see improvement in its business which resulted in a solid financial 
performance for the fiscal year. We are benefiting from the initiatives we have undertaken on both the 
operational and product sides of our business. This improvement resulted in a 14.6% increase in net 
revenues to $729.3 million in 2004 from $636.6 million in 2003. The Company also increased its
profitability in 2004 with net earnings of $29.6 million compared with net earnings of $7.3 million in 2003. 
The Company has seen significant improvement in its balance sheet with continued emphasis on reducing
inventory levels and improving cash flow. During the year, inventory was reduced by 1.4% even though
product sales increased by 14.3%. With strong cash management and improving operating performance, 
the Company also reduced total borrowings by $13.3 million or 19.5% during the year and increased cash 
and restricted cash by $38.0 million by year end. 

Our retail segment, including full-priced retail, factory outlet, Canada, and E-commerce, generated
net sales of $518.9 million during 2004, an increase of 15.9%, from $447.7 million in the prior year. This 
growth was driven by a comparable store sales increase of 9.9% and a larger store base, which represented
a 6.1% increase in average square footage as compared to 2003. The comparable store sales increase
reflects the improved results of both the men’s and women’s lines and our accessories business. In addition 
to strong same store sales growth, our retail stores also increased their margins and managed expenses 
effectively to deliver a substantial improvement in operating results. 

One of our key growth strategies focuses on the development of our new MARCIANO line. This line
was previously labeled as GUESS Collection and was rebranded as MARCIANO in the third quarter of
2004. The new assortment commands higher price points and it targets a more upscale, contemporary
customer. The MARCIANO line is available in approximately 120 of our full-price retail stores in the U.S.
and Canada. We also opened five MARCIANO stores in the second half of 2004 that feature this line
exclusively. 

We also began testing a new Accessories store concept in 2004. We believe we offer unique 
positioning in the marketplace with a well-recognized brand name at a more accessible price point than the 
luxury accessory brands. We opened six Accessories stores in the second half of 2004, which range in size
between 1,000 and 3,000 square feet. 

In the fourth quarter of 2003, management decided to exit the kids store business. At December 31, 
2004, there were three kids retail stores and one kids factory store still open. As of February 2005, we had 
closed one of these kids stores and intend to close two additional kids stores by year end. We do not expect
the closings and the charges related thereto to have a significant impact on 2005 operating results. 

While we are still experiencing challenges in our wholesale segment, we have seen some
improvements in domestic gross margins and in our international operations. The wholesale segment 
revenues for 2004 increased 9.4% to $163.2 million from $149.1 million in 2003. International wholesale
revenue increased by $20.2 million in 2004 compared to 2003. In the fourth quarter of 2004, we announced
the proposed acquisition of our European jeanswear licensee. Negotiations were completed in the fourth 
quarter and the transaction closed in January, 2005. We expect this transaction will add approximately 
$100 million in revenues and be slightly accretive to 2005 earnings. See Note 18 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. We expect our wholesale business to grow in 2005 primarily reflecting the 



19 

acquisition of our European jeanswear licensee. Our products were sold domestically in approximately 930
doors at the end of 2004 compared with approximately 850 doors at the end of 2003. 

Our licensing segment performed well with increased 2004 revenues of $47.2 million compared to
$39.8 million in 2003. We had 21 licensees at the end of 2004 as compared to 22 at the end of 2003. 
Licensing operating earnings increased to $37.7 million in 2004 from $32.3 million in 2003. 

The Company has continued to make investments to improve operating efficiencies and inventory
management. To this end, we implemented a new manufacturing system to gain further operating 
efficiencies through automation. This system, along with other actions we are taking, should result in
improved product visibility and lower processing and freight costs. In addition, a new inventory allocation 
system we are rolling out is resulting in improved inventory turnover and in-stock positions in the stores, 
and is contributing to higher store sales volumes with less inventory.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies 

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the U.S., which require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of the assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Management bases its estimates and judgments on its historical experience and other 
relevant factors, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of 
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Management evaluates its estimates 
and judgments on an ongoing basis including those related to the valuation of inventories, accounts 
receivable allowances, the useful life of assets for depreciation, restructuring expense and accruals, 
evaluation of impairment, recoverability of deferred taxes and evaluation of net recoverable amounts and
accruals for the sublet of certain lease obligations. The Company believes that the following significant
accounting policies involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity. 

Accounts receivable reserves:

In the normal course of business, the Company grants credit directly to certain wholesale customers, 
after a credit analysis based on financial and other criteria. Accounts receivable are recorded net of an 
allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated
losses that result from the inability of its wholesale customers to make their required payments. The
Company bases its allowances through analysis of the aging of accounts receivable at the date of the
financial statements, assessments of historical collections trends and an evaluation of the impact of current
economic conditions. 

Costs associated with customer markdowns are recorded as a reduction to net revenues, and are 
included in the allowance for doubtful accounts. These costs result from seasonal negotiations with the
Company’s wholesale customers, as well as historic trends and the evaluation of the impact of current
economic conditions. 

Inventory reserves: 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out and weighted average method) or market. 
The Company continually evaluates its inventories by assessing slow moving current product as well as 
prior seasons’ inventory. Market value of non-current inventory is estimated based on historical sales 
trends for this category of inventory of the Company’s individual product lines, the impact of market
trends, an evaluation of economic conditions and the value of current orders relating to the future sales of
this type of inventory. The Company closely monitors its off-price sales to ensure the actual results closely
match initial estimates. Estimates are regularly updated based upon this continuing review. 
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Valuation of goodwill, intangible and other long-lived assets:

The Company assesses the impairment of its long-lived assets (i.e., goodwill, and property and 
equipment), which requires the Company to make assumptions and judgments regarding the carrying value
of these assets on an annual basis, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the asset might be impaired. The assets are considered to be impaired if the Company determines that the 
carrying value may not be recoverable based upon its assessment of the asset’s ability to continue to
generate income from operations and positive cash flow in future periods or if significant changes in the
Company’s strategic business objectives and utilization of the assets occurred. If the assets (other than
goodwill) are assessed to be recoverable, they are depreciated or amortized over the periods benefited. If
the assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment recognized is the amount by which the carrying 
value of the assets exceeds the fair value of those assets. Fair value is determined based upon the 
undiscounted cash flows derived from the underlying asset. 

Litigation reserves: 

Estimated amounts for claims that are probable and can be reasonably estimated are recorded as 
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The likelihood of a material change in these estimated
reserves would be dependent on new claims as they may arise and the favorable or unfavorable outcome of 
the particular litigation. Both the amount and range of loss on the remaining pending litigation is 
uncertain. As additional information becomes available, the Company will assess the potential liability
related to pending litigation and will revise estimates as appropriate. Such revisions in estimates of the
potential liability could materially impact the results of operations and financial position. 

Results of Operations 

The following table sets forth actual operating results for the 2004, 2003 and 2002 fiscal years as a 
percentage of net revenue:

Year Ended December 31, 
 2004  2003  2002

Product sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 93.5% 93.8 % 93.3 %
Net royalties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6.5 6.2 6.7

Total net revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  100.0 100.0 100.0
Cost of product sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 62.4 65.4 65.8

Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  37.6 34.6 34.2
Selling, general and administrative expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . 30.0 31.0 34.8
Litigation settlement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  — — (0.7)
Restructuring, impairment and severance charges . . . . . . . . — 0.4 1.6

Earnings (loss) from operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.6 3.2 (1.5)
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.7 1.2 1.6
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.1) — —
Other, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  — — (0.1)

Earnings (loss) before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.0 2.0 (3.0)
Income taxes (benefit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2.9 0.9 (1.0)

Net earnings (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.1% 1.1% (2.0)%
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Year ended December 31, 2004 Compared to Year ended December 31, 2003. 

Net revenue. Net revenue increased $92.7 million or 14.6% to $729.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004, from $636.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase was driven by
improvements in all of our segments, but was primarily attributable to sales growth in the retail segment. 

Net revenue from retail operations increased $71.2 million, or 15.9%, to $518.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004, from $447.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase was 
driven by a comparable store sales increase of 9.9% which accounted for $42.4 million of the increase and
a $28.8 million increase due to an average of 14 new stores during 2004 with a 6.1% increase in average
square footage as compared to last year. The most significant comparable store sales increases were in our
Canadian retail stores. Currency fluctuations had a positive impact on our Canadian results. Currency
fluctuations accounted for $4.6 million of the increase in net revenue. 

Net revenue from wholesale operations increased $14.1 million or 9.4% to $163.2 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2004, from $149.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase was 
driven by growth in international wholesale. Domestic wholesale net revenue decreased $6.1 million, or
6.4%, to $89.4 million in 2004 from $95.5 million in 2003, reflecting lower shipments to our domestic
wholesale customers, primarily department stores. International wholesale net revenues increased $20.2 
million, or 37.7%, to $73.8 million in 2004 from $53.6 million in 2003. The growth of our international 
business was driven by strong performance in handbags in Europe. Currency fluctuations accounted for
$5.7 million of the increase in net revenue.

Net royalties from licensing operations increased by $7.4 million, or 18.8%, to $47.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004, from $39.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This growth was 
driven by our domestic licensees, as a result of the strength of our accessories business. The composition of
licensees has remained consistent in 2004 as compared to 2003, decreasing from 22 licensees in 2003 to 21
at the end of 2004. 

Gross profit. Gross profit increased $53.9 million or 24.5% to $274.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004, from $220.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase is 
attributable to improved margins in both the retail and wholesale segments and higher licensing revenues.
Gross profit for the retail segment increased $28.4 million, or 20.2%, to $168.7 million in 2004 from $140.3 
million in 2003 due to the increase in comparable store sales and additional sales from the new stores in 
2004. Gross profit for the wholesale segment increased $18.1 million, or 45.1%, to $58.1 million in 2004. 
The increase in gross profit for wholesale in 2004 was attributable to higher gross margins which accounted
for $14.3 million of the increase, and to an increase in sales, which accounted for $3.8 million of the gross 
profit increase. 

Gross margin (gross profit as a percentage of total net revenue) improved to 37.6% for the year ended 
December 31, 2004, from 34.6% for the year ended December 31, 2003. Gross margin from product sales
increased to 33.2% for the year ended December 31, 2004, from 30.2% for the year ended December 31, 
2003. Both retail and wholesale segments contributed to the gross margin improvement. The higher gross 
margin in the retail segment represented better leverage of store occupancy costs due to comparable store 
sales increases. The gross margin improvement in wholesale was due to a higher percentage of
international wholesale sales which carries a higher overall margin and improved performance of product
sales in the off-price market related to the domestic wholesale business. 

The Company’s gross margins may not be comparable to other entities since some entities include all
of the costs related to their distribution in cost of product sales and others, like the Company, exclude a 
portion of them related to the wholesale segment’s distribution costs from gross margin, including them 
instead in selling, general and administrative expenses. 
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Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses 
increased $21.4 million, or 10.8%, to $218.5 million, or 30.0% of net revenues for the year ended 
December 31, 2004, from $197.1 million, or 31.0% of net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003. 

The higher SG&A expenses resulted from a $5.3 million increase in advertising expenses and an $11.4 
million increase in store selling expense. The higher store selling is attributable to the operation of an 
average of 14 net new stores accounting for $5.9 million of the increase, and a $5.5 million increase related
to comparable store sales growth. SG&A expenses for the international wholesale business also increased 
$5.9 million reflecting the significant growth in that business during 2004. The improvement in the SG&A
rate as a percent of net revenues reflects improved expense leverage on higher comparable store sales. 

Restructuring, impairment and severance charges. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the
Company recorded restructuring, impairment and severance charges of $2.4 million ($1.4 million after tax 
or $0.06 per diluted share), which represented a charge of $0.8 million related to severance payments for 
the reduction in the Company’s workforce and a charge of $1.6 million related to the write-down of the 
value of certain impaired assets, of which $1.2 million related to the Company’s fourth quarter 2003
decision to close its 10 underperforming kids’ stores. 

Earnings from operations. Earnings from operations increased $34.9 million to $55.5 million in 2004
from $20.6 million in 2003. The 2003 results included restructuring, impairment and severance charges of
$2.4 million. The retail segment generated earnings from operations of $47.8 million in 2004 compared to 
earnings from operations of $32.4 million in 2003. The increase in earnings from operations was primarily
attributable to a 9.9% increase in comparable store sales for 2004 partially offset by $11.4 million in higher 
costs related to operating an average of 14 net new stores and the comparable store sales growth. The 
income from operations for the wholesale segment was $2.2 million in 2004 compared to a loss from 
operations of $9.0 million in 2003. The improved operating performance in the wholesale segment was 
principally due to an $18.1 million increase in wholesale gross margin attributable to a 9.4% increase in 
revenues, higher initial margins and a decreased loss on off-price sales. Earnings from operations for the
licensing operating segment increased to $37.7 million in 2004, from $32.3 million in 2003 due primarily to
the improved performance of our domestic accessories licensees. The cost of unallocated corporate 
overhead declined to $32.2 million in 2004 from $35.1 million in 2003 due to continued cost savings
initiatives. 

Interest expense. Interest expense decreased $2.3 million or 29.1% to $5.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004, from $8.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 reflecting lower effective 
interest rates and a lower average debt balance during the year. Total debt at December 31, 2004 was $54.8
million, which included $54.2 million of the Company’s 6.75% Secured Notes due 2012. On a comparable 
basis, the average debt balance for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $63.5 million, with an average 
effective interest rate of 8.9%, versus an average debt balance of $83.4 million, with an average effective
interest rate of 9.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2003. 

Income taxes. Income tax for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $21.1 million, or a 41.7% 
effective tax rate, compared to the income tax of $5.5 million, or a 43.0% effective tax rate, for the year 
ended December 31, 2003. The change in the effective tax rate was the result of increased income in 2004
and the consequential lower impact of permanent tax differences and other adjustments compared to the 
prior year. 

Net earnings. Net earnings increased by $22.3 million to $29.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004, from earnings of $7.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. 
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Year ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Year ended December 31, 2002. 

Net revenue. Net revenue increased $53.5 million or 9.2% to $636.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003, from $583.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The increase was primarily
attributable to sales growth in the retail segment. 

Net revenue from retail operations increased $63.2 million, or 16.4%, to $447.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003, from $384.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The increase was 
driven by a comparable store sales increase of 9.3% which accounted for $34.6 million of the increase and
a $28.6 million increase due to an average of 19 new store openings with an 8.2% increase in square
footage as compared to last year. The most significant increases were in our domestic factory outlet stores
and our Canadian retail stores. 

Net revenue from wholesale operations decreased $10.5 million or 6.6% to $149.1 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2003, from $159.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Domestic wholesale 
net revenue decreased $11.8 million, or 11.0%, to $95.5 million in 2003 from $107.3 million in the same
prior year period. The decrease in domestic wholesale revenue was attributable to the decrease in the 
average number of locations in which our products were offered. International wholesale net revenues
increased $1.3 million, or 2.5%, to $53.6 million in 2003 from $52.3 million in the same prior year period.
International wholesale net revenue increased primarily due to improved sales in Europe partially offset by 
reduced sales in the Middle East and South America. 

Net royalties from licensing operations increased by $0.8 million, or 1.8%, to $39.8 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2003, from $39.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The increase in net 
royalties was primarily due to positive royalty adjustments from licensee audits. The composition of
licenses has remained consistent in 2003 as compared to 2002, increasing from 20 licensees in 2002 to 22 at 
the end of 2003. 

Gross profit. Gross profit increased $20.8 million or 10.4% to $220.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003, from $199.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The increase was 
attributable to improved margins at retail, partially offset by lower wholesale margins. Gross profit for the
retail segment increased $23.3 million, or 19.9%, to $140.3 million in 2003 from $117.0 million in 2002 due 
to the increase in comparable store sales resulting in better leverage of the store occupancy costs. Gross 
profit for the wholesale segment decreased $3.3 million, or 7.4%, to $40.0 million in 2003 from $43.3 
million in 2002. The decline in gross profit for wholesale was primarily due to the $10.5 million reduction 
in sales, which accounted for $2.8 million of the decrease. 

Gross margin (gross profit as a percentage of total net revenue) improved slightly to 34.6% for the
year ended December 31, 2003, from 34.2% for the year ended December 31, 2002. Gross margin from 
product sales increased to 30.2% for the year ended December 31, 2003, from 29.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2002. Higher gross margin in the retail segment was offset by lower gross margin in the
wholesale segment as a result of lower initial margins. 

The Company’s gross margins may not be comparable to other entities since some entities include all
of the costs related to their distribution in cost of product sales and others, like the Company, exclude a 
portion of them related to the wholesale segment’s distribution costs from gross margin, including them 
instead in selling, general and administrative expenses. 

Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses 
decreased $5.8 million, or 2.9%, to $197.1 million, or 31.0% of net revenues for the year ended 
December 31, 2003, from $202.9 million, or 34.8% of net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002. 

The improvement in SG&A expenses resulted from $5.4 million in lower advertising expenses and 
$5.6 million in other cost-cutting actions taken during 2003 partially offset by a $5.2 million increase for the
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operation of an average of 19 net new stores. The improvement in the SG&A rate as a percent of net
revenues reflected lower SG&A expenses and increases in comparable store sales. 

Litigation settlement. During 2002, the Company received approximately $4.3 million in a litigation 
settlement. 

Restructuring, impairment and severance charges. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the
Company recorded restructuring, impairment and severance charges of $2.4 million ($1.4 million after tax 
or $0.06 per diluted share), which represented a charge of $0.8 million related to severance payments for 
the reduction in the Company’s workforce and a charge of $1.6 million related to the write-down of the 
value of certain impaired assets, of which $1.2 million related to the Company’s fourth quarter decision to 
close its 10 underperforming kids’ stores. 

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company recorded restructuring, impairment and 
severance charges of $9.2 million ($6.2 million after tax or $0.14 per diluted share). Included in this charge, 
the Company recorded $1.5 million in additional costs for rent paid, estimated rent to be paid and lease 
exit costs related to excess leased facilities and under-performing stores which were abandoned or closed in 
2003. In addition, $6.9 million of the charges represented the write-down of the value of certain impaired
assets, including fixed assets related to unprofitable stores. The remaining $0.8 million of the charge was
related to severance costs for the termination of 59 employees, which was part of the Company’s 
continuing efforts to reduce costs, improve productivity, streamline its corporate structure and consolidate 
operations. The employees’ severance was paid in 2002 and 2003. 

Earnings from operations. Earnings from operations increased $29.1 million to $20.6 million in 2003
from a loss of $8.5 million in 2002. The 2003 results included restructuring, impairment and severance
charges of $2.4 million, while the 2002 results included restructuring, impairment and severance charges of 
$9.2 million partially offset by a litigation settlement of $4.3 million. The retail segment generated earnings 
from operations of $32.4 million in 2003 compared to earnings from operations of $4.4 million in 2002. The
increase in earnings from operations was primarily attributable to a 9.3% increase in comparable store 
sales for 2003 partially offset by $5.2 million in higher costs related to operating an average of 19 net new 
stores. The loss from operations for the wholesale segment was $9.0 million in 2003 compared to a loss
from operations of $4.7 million in 2002. The increase in the operating loss for the wholesale segment was
principally due to a $3.3 million decrease in wholesale gross margin attributable to a 6.6% decline in 
revenues, lower initial margins and an increased loss on off-price sales plus $1.0 million higher expenses 
primarily resulting from a restructuring charge of $0.5 million related to severance payments. Earnings 
from operations for the licensing operating segment increased to $32.3 million in 2003, from $29.1 million
in 2002 due primarily to the reduced advertising expenses of $2.5 million. The cost of unallocated
corporate overhead declined to $35.1 million in 2003 from $37.3 million in 2002 due to cost savings 
initiatives partially offset by the proceeds from a litigation settlement of $4.3 million received in 2002. 

Interest expense. Interest expense decreased $1.4 million or 15.6% to $8.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003, from $9.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 reflecting the lower interest
rate of 6.75% on the Secured Notes issued on April 28, 2003 compared to 9.5% on the Senior 
Subordinated Notes redeemed on May 27, 2003. Total debt at December 31, 2003 was $68.1 million, which 
included $66.8 million of the Company’s 6.75% Secured Notes due 2012. On a comparable basis, the
average debt balance for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $83.4 million, with an average effective 
interest rate of 9.6%, versus an average debt balance of $91.4 million, with an average effective interest
rate of 10.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2002. 

Income taxes. Income tax for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $5.5 million, or a 43.0% 
effective tax rate, compared to the income tax benefit of $5.5 million, or a 33.0% effective tax rate, for the
year ended December 31, 2002. The change in the effective tax rate was the result of income in 2003 
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compared to a loss in 2002. While the federal loss can be carried back and fully utilized, certain states do 
not allow carryback resulting in a lower effective tax benefit rate. 

Net earnings (loss). Net earnings increased by $18.6 million to $7.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003, from a loss of $11.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The 2002 results 
included litigation settlement proceeds of $4.3 million, or $2.9 million, net of tax, and restructuring,
impairment and severance charges of $9.2 million, or $6.2 million, net of tax.

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2004 and the
effects such obligations are expected to have on liquidity and cash flow in future periods (dollars in 
thousands): 

Payments due by period

Contractual Obligations:  Total  
Less than 1

year 
1-3 

years 
3-5 

years 
More than

5 years 
Long-Term Debt Obligations . . . . . .  $ 54,826 $13,430  $ 26,530 $ 14,866 $ —
Operating Lease Obligations . . . . . .  440,916 63,778  121,201 105,555 150,382

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $495,742 $77,208  $147,731 $120,421 $150,382

Our need for liquidity will primarily arise from the funding of principal payments, the acquisition of 
Maco, expansion and remodeling of our retail stores, shop-in-shop programs, systems, infrastructure and 
operations. We have historically financed our operations primarily from internally generated funds and 
borrowings under our Credit Facility (defined below). The Maco acquisition will be financed with the
existing Credit Facility, new borrowings and available cash. Please see “Important Factors Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” below for a discussion of risk factors which could reasonably be likely to
result in a decrease of internally generated funds available to finance capital expenditures and working 
capital requirements. 

On September 27, 2002, the Company entered into a new credit facility led by Wachovia 
Securities, Inc., as arranger and administrative agent (the “Credit Facility”), which replaced a previous
credit agreement. The Credit Facility has a term of four years and provides for a maximum line of credit of
$85 million, including an amount made available to the Company’s Canadian subsidiaries under a separate 
credit agreement (currently $15 million). The Credit Facility includes a $47.5 million sub-limit for letters of
credit. Borrowings available under the Credit Facility are subject to a borrowing base and outstanding
borrowings are secured by inventory, accounts receivable and substantially all other personal property of
the borrowers. For borrowings under the Credit Facility, the Company may elect an interest rate based on
either the Prime Rate or a Eurodollar rate plus a margin, which fluctuates depending on availability under 
the Credit Facility and the Company’s financial performance as measured by a cash flow test. This margin
ranges from 0 to 75 basis points for Prime Rate loans and from 175 to 250 basis points for Eurodollar rate
loans. Monthly commitment fees for unused borrowings up to $60 million under the Credit Facility are
37.5 basis points per annum times the difference between $60 million and the amount of outstanding loans 
and letters of credit. The Credit Facility requires the Company to maintain a minimum tangible net worth, 
as defined, if excess availability under the Credit Facility is less than $20 million. The agreement also
restricts the payment of dividends by the Company, the incurrence of certain indebtedness and certain
loans, and investments other than capital expenditures. 

On December 30, 2004, the Company and certain of its affiliates entered into an amendment to the
Credit Facility. The amendment, among other things, (i) increases to $55 million the aggregate amount of 
letters of credit that may be outstanding under the loan agreement and limits the amount of letters of 
credit that may be issued in currencies other than U.S. dollars to $35 million, (ii) permits the acquisition by 
the Company and its affiliates of the remaining shares of capital stock not currently owned by the
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Company and its affiliates of Maco Apparel S.p.A., a licensee of the Company, and (iii) permits the
guarantee of certain indebtedness by the Company and its affiliates in connection with the acquisition. The
documents covering the Canadian portion of the Credit Facility were also amended to permit the actions
described in clauses (ii) and (iii) above. At December 31, 2004, the Company had $0.7 million in
outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility; it had $2.5 million in outstanding standby letters of 
credit, $11.0 million in outstanding documentary letters of credit, and approximately $43.6 million 
available for future borrowings. As of December 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with all of its 
covenants under the Credit Facility. 

On April 28, 2003, Guess? Royalty Finance LLC, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company 
(the “Issuer”), issued in a private placement $75 million of 6.75% asset-backed notes due June 2012 (the
“Secured Notes”). The Secured Notes are secured by rights and interests in receivables generated from 
specific license agreements of specified GUESS? trademarks and all royalty monies payable or becoming
payable under such license agreements, and a security interest in specified assets consisting primarily of 
such GUESS? trademarks and the specified license agreements. The Secured Notes pay interest and 
amortize principal quarterly. Payment of principal and interest on the Secured Notes is guaranteed by
Guess? IP Holder L.P. (“IP Holder”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which is the 
owner of substantially all of the Company’s domestic and many of the Company’s foreign trademarks. 
Under the terms of the Secured Notes, the Issuer, IP Holder and the applicable indenture trustee have
each agreed that none of them will take any action that would result in a material breach or impairment of
any of the rights of any licensee under any license of the trademarks held by IP Holder, including the 
concurrent license of such trademarks back to the Company. The Secured Notes are subject to an interest 
reserve account in an amount equal to the greater of (1) the product of the interest rate and the
outstanding principal amount or (2) $1,750,000. At December 31, 2004, the Company had $3.7 million of 
restricted cash related to the interest reserve. The net proceeds, after interest reserves and expenses, of 
approximately $66.8 million, along with available cash and borrowings under the Credit Facility, were used
to repay the 9½% Senior Subordinated Notes due in August 2003. The Company called the 9½% Senior 
Subordinated Notes for redemption on May 27, 2003. At December 31, 2004, the Company had $54.2
million outstanding under the Secured Notes. 

During the fiscal year 2004, the Company relied on trade credit along with available cash and
borrowings under the Credit Facility, and internally generated funds to finance its operations and
expansion. Net cash provided by operating activities was $81.6 million for the year ended December 31, 
2004 compared to $65.9 million of net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended
December 31, 2003. The increase in cash provided by operating activities reflects a $22.3 million 
improvement in net earnings in 2004 versus 2003, partially offset by net changes in operating assets and 
liabilities. At December 31, 2004, the Company had working capital of $138.2 million compared to $99.8
million at December 31, 2003. 

Capital expenditures totaled $34.8 million before lease incentives of $7.5 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2004. This compared to capital expenditures of $21.7 million before lease incentives of $3.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The Company’s capital expenditures for 2005 are planned
at approximately $42.0 million before lease incentives of approximately $7.0 million, primarily for retail 
store expansion of approximately 36 stores, significant store remodeling programs, investments in
information systems and enhancements in other infrastructure. 

The Company’s primary working capital needs are for inventory and accounts receivable. The 
Company’s inventory levels decreased $1.2 million in 2004 to $82.3 million at December 31, 2004 from 
$83.5 million at December 31, 2003. The Company anticipates that it will be able to satisfy its ongoing cash 
requirements during the next twelve months for the Maco acquisition, working capital, capital 
expenditures, and interest and principal payments on its debt, primarily with cash flow from operations
supplemented by borrowings under the Credit Facility and new debt. 
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In January 2002, the Company established a qualified employee stock purchase plan (“ESPP”), the 
terms of which allow for qualified employees to participate in the purchase of designated shares of the
Company’s common stock at a price equal to 85% of the lower of the closing price at the beginning or end
of each quarterly stock purchase period. On January 23, 2002, the Company filed with the SEC a
Registration Statement on Form S-8 registering 2,000,000 shares of common stock for the ESPP. During
2004, 35,397 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued out of its treasury shares pursuant to the
ESPP at an average price of $12.78 per share for a total of $0.5 million. 

In May 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase shares of its 
own stock in an amount of up to $15 million from time to time in open market transactions. During 2002, 
the Company purchased 606,000 shares at an aggregate cost of $3.2 million, or an average of $5.21 per 
share. No share repurchases were made during the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004. Since the 
inception of the share repurchase program in May 2001, the Company has purchased 1,137,000 shares at
an aggregated cost of $7.1 million, or an average of $6.26 per share. 

Seasonality

The Company’s business is impacted by the general seasonal trends characteristic of the apparel and 
retail industries. Retail operations are generally stronger in the third and fourth quarters, and wholesale 
operations generally experience stronger performance in the third quarter. As the timing of the shipment
of products may vary from year to year, the result for any particular quarter may not be indicative of results 
for the full year. 

Inflation 

The Company does not believe that the relatively moderate rates of inflation experienced in the U.S. 
over the last three years have had a significant effect on net revenue or profitability. Although higher rates
of inflation have been experienced in a number of foreign countries in which the Company’s products are 
manufactured and sold, management does not believe that foreign rates of inflation have had a material 
adverse effect on its net revenue or profitability. 

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151 (“SFAS 151”), “Inventory Costs an amendment of 
ARB No. 43, Chapter 4.” SFAS 151 clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense,
freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage) and requires that those items be recognized as 
current-period charges. SFAS 151 also requires that allocation of fixed production overhead to the costs of 
conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS 151 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 151 is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations. 

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (R) (“SFAS 123 (R)”), “Share-Based Payment.” 
SFAS 123 (R) requires that companies recognize the grant-date fair value of stock options and other
equity-based compensation issued to employees in the income statement. SFAS 123 (R) generally requires 
that companies account for those transactions using the fair-value-based method, and eliminates using the
intrinsic value method of accounting in APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” 
SFAS 123 (R) is effective for the Company beginning with the third quarter of 2005. If SFAS 123 (R) had
been adopted at the beginning of 2004, the impact would have been to reduce fully diluted earnings per 
share by approximately $0.03 per share. 
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Important Factors Regarding Forward-Looking Statements 

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including documents incorporated by reference 
herein, we make “forward-looking” statements, which are not historical facts, but are forward-looking 
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking
statements may also be in the Company’s other reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, in its 
press releases and in other documents. In addition, from time to time, the Company, through its
management, may make oral forward-looking statements. These statements relate to analyses and other 
information based on forecasts of future results and estimates of amounts not yet determinable. These
statements also relate to our future prospects and proposed new products, services, developments or 
business strategies. These forward-looking statements are identified by their use of terms and phrases such
as “anticipate”, “believe”, “could”, “estimate”, “expect”, “intend”, “may”, “plan”, “predict”, “project”, 
“will”, “continue”, and other similar terms and phrases, including references to assumptions. 

Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in any of the forward-looking 
statements are reasonable, actual results could differ materially from those projected or assumed. These
forward-looking statements may include, among other things, statements relating to the Company’s 
expected results of operations, the accuracy of data relating to, and anticipated levels of, future inventory and
gross margins, anticipated cash requirements and sources, cost containment efforts, estimated charges, plans
regarding store openings and closings, plans regarding business growth, e-commerce, business seasonality,
industry trends, consumer demands and preferences, competition and general economic conditions. Such 
statements involve risks and uncertainties, which may cause actual results to differ materially from those set 
forth in these statements. The Company does not intend, and undertakes no obligation, to update the
forward-looking statements to reflect future events or circumstances. 

Specific risks and uncertainties of which you should be aware include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

Our business is dependent on the fashion industry and could suffer from adverse changes including
the following: 

• reduced levels of consumer spending resulting from (1) a general economic downturn, (2) changes 
in interest rates, (3) the availability of consumer credit, (4) changes in taxation rates, (5) consumer 
confidence in future economic conditions, or (6) reduced levels of consumer disposable income; 

• introduction of new products or pricing changes by our competitors; or 

• a lower number of fashion retailers carrying our products or an increase in the ownership 
concentration of fashion retailers. 

Our revenue from the sales of products would decline if there was a decline in the demand for our 
products, including licensee products. A decline in demand for our products could arise from our 
inability to: 

• identify and respond appropriately to changing consumer demands and fashion trends;

• maintain favorable brand recognition and customer acceptance of our existing and future products; 

• appropriately price our products; 

• obtain sufficient retail floor space and effective presentation of our products at retail or expand our 
network of retail stores; or 

• control the quality, focus, image, financial stability or distribution of our licensed products. 
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Our revenue from the sale of products is impacted by our relationships with third party customers
and suppliers and could be adversely affected by: 

• a decision by the controlling owner of a group of department stores or any other significant
customer to decrease the amount purchased from us or to cease carrying GUESS products; 

• possible cancellation of wholesale orders;

• our general failure to maintain and control our existing distribution and licensing arrangements or 
to procure additional distribution and licensing relationships;

• our inability to ensure product availability and optimize supply chain efficiencies with suppliers and
retailers; 

• increased costs due to reliance on third-party suppliers and contract manufacturers; 

• a failure by our suppliers to produce our products to our quality standards in a timely manner or to 
comply with acceptable labor practices; or 

• our inability to locate and replace suppliers in a timely fashion and on reasonably acceptable terms 
as necessary. 

Our business is impacted by U.S. and international general economic and political conditions and
could be adversely affected by: 

• unfavorable changes in regional, national and global economic conditions; 

• social, political, legal or economic instability or changes resulting in the disruption of trade with the
countries in which our contractors, suppliers or customers are located; 

• the imposition of additional regulations relating to imports, the imposition of additional duties,
taxes and other charges on imports; or 

• significant fluctuations in the value of the dollar against foreign currencies or restrictions on the 
transfer of funds. 

Our business is subject to a number of other risks. Our business could be adversely affected by any:

• lack of continued availability of sufficient working capital; 

• inability to integrate new stores into existing operations;

• inability to successfully integrate operations from acquisitions, including the acquisition of Maco, 
our European jeanswear licensee; 

• difficulties in managing and overseeing foreign operations; 

• inability to strengthen our inventory cost accounting controls and procedures; 

• continued or accelerated decline in the revenues of our domestic wholesale segment;

• negative outcomes of pending and future litigation; 

• third party’s infringement upon or any other inability to protect our existing trademarks and 
proprietary rights; 

• foreclosure upon the trademarks and/or trademark license agreements pledged as collateral to 
holders of notes issued by our wholly owned subsidiary Guess? Royalty Finance LLC (“Pledged 
License Agreements”);

• appointment of a third party to act as servicer of the Pledged License Agreements;
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• failure by licensees of our trademarks to maintain the quality, focus, image or distribution of our
licensed products; 

• loss or retirement of our key executives or other key employees;

• inability to generate sufficient cash flow to service debt obligations for our notes and other line of 
credit facilities; or 

• inability to comply with debt covenant restrictions, which may trigger payment acceleration
provisions. 

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk. 

Exchange Rate Risk 

The Company receives U.S. dollars (“USD”) for substantially all product sales and licensing revenue. 
Inventory purchases from offshore contract manufacturers are primarily denominated in USD; however, 
purchase prices for products may be impacted by fluctuations in the exchange rate between the USD and 
the local currencies of the contract manufacturers, which may have the effect of increasing the cost of 
goods in the future. In addition, royalties received from international licensees are subject to foreign 
currency translation fluctuations as a result of the net sales of the licensee being denominated in local 
currency and royalties being paid to the Company in USD. During the last three fiscal years, exchange rate 
fluctuations have not had a material impact on inventory costs. 

The Company may enter into derivative financial instruments, including forward exchange contracts, 
to manage exchange risk on foreign currency transactions. These financial instruments can be used to
protect the Company from the risk that the eventual net cash inflows from the foreign currency
transactions will be adversely affected by changes in exchange rates. Changes in the fair value of derivative
financial instruments are either recognized periodically through the income statement or through
stockholders’ equity as a component of comprehensive income or loss. The classification depends on 
whether the derivative financial instrument qualifies for hedge accounting, and if so, whether it qualifies as 
a fair value hedge or cash flow hedge. Generally, changes in fair values of derivatives designated as fair
value hedges are matched in the income statement against the respective gain or loss relating to the 
hedged items. Changes in fair values of derivatives accounted for as cash flow hedges, to the extent they
are effective as hedges, are recorded in other comprehensive income or loss net of deferred taxes. Changes 
in fair values of derivatives not qualifying as hedges are currently reported in income. 

Forward Exchange
Contracts  

USD 
Equivalent  Maturity Date  

Fair Value in USD at
December 31, 2004

Canadian dollars $1,000,000 January 4, 2005 to January 31, 2005 $1,102,064 
Canadian dollars 1,000,000 February 1, 2005 to February 28, 2005 1,095,864 
Canadian dollars 1,000,000 February 15, 2005 to March 15, 2005 1,045,685 
Canadian dollars 1,000,000 March 1, 2005 to March 31, 2005 1,088,208
Canadian dollars 1,000,000 April 1, 2005 to April 29, 2005 1,088,624 
Canadian dollars 1,000,000 May 2, 2005 to May 31, 2005 1,086,378
Canadian dollars 1,000,000 June 1, 2005 to June 30, 2005 1,058,251
Canadian dollars 1,000,000 July 5, 2005 to July 29, 2005 1,048,265 
Canadian dollars 1,000,000 August 2, 2005 to August 27, 2005 1,037,281 

$9,000,000 $9,650,620

Euros $3,200,000 February 15, 2005 to February 21, 2005 $3,378,093 
Euros 4,015,000 March 4, 2005 to March 25, 2005 4,236,408 
Euros  600,000 April 11, 2005 635,938 

$7,815,000 $8,250,439
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Based upon the rates at December 31, 2004, the cost to buy the equivalent USD discussed above was
approximately $11.6 million Canadian dollars and approximately 6.1 million Euros. At December 31, 2004, 
the Company had forward exchange contracts to purchase $16.8 million USD and the fair value of those 
contracts at that date was $17.9 million USD. At December 31, 2003, the Company had forward exchange
contracts to purchase $7.3 million USD and the fair value of those contracts at that date was $7.6 million
USD, respectively. 

Interest Rate Risk 

At December 31, 2004, 98.8% of the Company’s indebtedness contained a fixed interest rate of 6.75%. 
At December 31, 2003, 98.1% of the Company’s indebtedness contained a fixed interest rate of 6.75%.
Substantially all of the Company’s remaining indebtedness, including borrowings under the Credit Facility,
is at variable rates of interest. Accordingly, changes in interest rates would impact the Company’s results of 
operations in future periods. A 100 basis point change in interest rates is not expected to significantly 
impact the Company’s consolidated operating results. 

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data listed in Item 15 of Part IV of this report. 

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. 

None. 

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures. 

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal
executive officers and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and 
procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officers and our 
principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the
end of the period covered by this annual report. 

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 
2004 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting. As a result, no corrective actions were required or undertaken. 

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and
with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officers and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting 
based on the framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in 
Internal Control—Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal control over 
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2004. 

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as 
of December 31, 2004 has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, 
as stated in their report which is included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Guess?, Inc.: 
We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Guess?, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal 
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal 
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Guess?, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk 
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Guess?, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal 
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on 
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (COSO). Also, in our opinion, Guess?, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO). 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Guess?, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and 
comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended 
December 31, 2004, and our report dated March 8, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on those 
consolidated financial statements. 

/s/ KPMG LLP 

Los Angeles, California 
March 8, 2005 



33 

ITEM 9B. Other Information. 

None. 

PART III 

ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant. 

The information required by this item can be found under the caption “Directors and Executive 
Officers” in the Company’s Proxy Statement (the “Proxy Statement”) to be filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the end of our fiscal year and is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

With respect to Item 406 of Regulation S-K, our Code of Conduct is filed herewith as Exhibit 14.1.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation. 

The information in the Proxy Statement set forth under the caption “Executive Compensation” is 
incorporated herein by reference. 

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder 
Matters. 

The information set forth under the caption “Security Ownership and Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. 

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions. 

The information set forth under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in the 
Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. 

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services. 

The information set forth under the caption “Relationship with Independent Registered Public 
Accounting Firm” in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules. 

Documents Filed with Report 

(1) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

(2) Consolidated Financial Statements

The financial statements listed on the accompanying Index to Consolidated Financial Statements 
and Financial Statement Schedule are filed as part of this report. 

(3) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule

The financial statement schedule listed on the accompanying Index to Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Financial Statement Schedule is filed as part of this report. 

(4) Exhibits 

The exhibits listed on the accompanying Index to Exhibits are filed as part of this report. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Guess?, Inc.: 

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Guess?, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004
and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive 
income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2004. In
connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial
statement schedule of valuation and qualifying accounts. These consolidated financial statements and
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on 
our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Guess?, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended 
December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial 
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Guess?, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated 
March 8, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective 
operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP 

Los Angeles, California 
March 8, 2005 
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GUESS?, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2004 and 2003 

 2004  2003
(in thousands, except 

share data) 
ASSETS
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 106,003 $ 67,163
Restricted cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,660 4,509
Receivables, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53,915 32,602
Inventories, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 82,329 83,530
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,516 13,341
Deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,600 9,499
Total current assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  271,023 210,644

Property and equipment, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 113,944 114,403
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  11,610 11,610
Long-term deferred tax assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,894 16,244
Other assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,833 9,864

 $ 424,304  $ 362,765

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
Current liabilities: 

Current installments of notes payable and long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 13,430 $ 13,931
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 58,158 44,888
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61,211 52,056
Total current liabilities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  132,799 110,875

Notes payable and long-term debt, excluding current installments . . . . . . . . . . . . 41,396 54,161
Long-term deferred rent and lease incentives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25,282 14,947
Other long-term liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,250 —

 203,727  179,983

Commitments and contingencies 

Stockholders’ equity: 
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value. Authorized 10,000,000 shares; no shares 

issued and outstanding. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value. Authorized 150,000,000 shares; issued 

65,188,828 and 64,719,287 shares at 2004 and 2003, outstanding 44,177,769
and 43,672,831 shares at 2004 and 2003, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 160 155

Paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  178,406 173,638
Deferred compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,093) (509)
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  192,748 163,182
Accumulated other comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,076 3,300
Treasury stock, 21,011,059 and 21,046,456 shares repurchased at 2004 and 

2003, respectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (156,720) (156,984)
Stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  220,577 182,782

 $ 424,304  $ 362,765

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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GUESS?, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

 2004  2003  2002
(in thousands, except per share data) 

Net revenue: 
Product sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $682,020 $596,806 $544,081
Net royalties. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  47,242 39,779 39,058

 729,262 636,585  583,139
Cost of product sales. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 455,278 416,430 383,806
Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  273,984 220,155 199,333
Selling, general and administrative expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 218,502 197,130 202,930
Litigation settlement. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  — — (4,250)
Restructuring, impairment and severance charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2,425 9,179
Earnings (loss) from operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55,482 20,600 (8,526)
Other expense (income): 

Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,653 7,974 9,444
Interest income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (619) (134) (313)
Other, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (265) (26) (825)

 4,769 7,814  8,306
Earnings (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50,713 12,786 (16,832)
Income tax expense (benefit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,147 5,500 (5,550)
Net earnings (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 29,566 $ 7,286 $ (11,282)

Earnings (loss) per share 
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.67 $ 0.17 $ (0.26)
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.66 $ 0.17 $ (0.26)

Weighted number of shares outstanding
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  44,010 43,279 43,392
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  44,544 43,558 43,392

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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GUESS?, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

 2004  2003 2002
(in thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 29,566 $ 7,286 $(11,282)
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash provided

by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment . . . . . 34,975 34,924 37,727
Amortization of other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 467 20 252
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,751) 5,013 (8,867)
Loss on disposition of property and equipment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 136 3,034 8,152
Other items, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,665 1,639 362

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Restricted cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 849 (4,509) —
Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (21,313) 2,835 5,063
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,201 12,153 422
Prepaid expenses and other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,213) (6,717) (370)
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,270 428 (3,473)
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9,155 9,093 4,732
Long-term deferred rent and lease incentives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,335 736 3,564
Other long-term liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,250 — —
Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 81,592 65,935 36,282

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchases of property and equipment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (34,779) (21,661) (29,385)
Proceeds from the disposition of property and equipment . . . . . . 1,020 6 1,494
Proceeds from the sale of long-term investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (327) (190) 75
Acquisition of license . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (1,347)
Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (34,086) (21,845) (29,163)

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds from notes payable and long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 214,066 342,468 48,919
Repayment of notes payable and long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (227,332) (355,994) (55,029)
Issuance of common stock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,453 4,351 1,914
Purchase of treasury stock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (3,158)
Net cash used in financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (8,813) (9,175) (7,354)

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . 147 495 118
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . . . . . . . . . . . . 38,840 35,410 (117)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67,163 31,753 31,870
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 106,003 $ 67,163 $ 31,753

Supplemental disclosures 
Cash paid (received) during the year for:
Interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 4,832 $ 9,989 $ 9,221
Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,071 (5,324) 1,186

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements



GUESS?, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

F-7 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices 

Guess?, Inc. (the “Company” or “GUESS”) designs, markets, distributes and licenses a leading
lifestyle collection of casual apparel and accessories for men and women that reflect the American lifestyle
and European fashion sensibilities. The Company’s designs are sold in GUESS owned stores, to a network 
of wholesale accounts that includes primarily better department stores, selected specialty retailers and 
upscale boutiques and through the Internet. GUESS branded products, some of which are produced under 
license, are also sold internationally through a series of licensees and distributors. 

Classification of Certain Costs and Expenses

The Company includes inbound freight charges, purchasing costs, retail store occupancy costs and a 
portion of the Company’s distribution costs related to its retail business in costs of product sales. 
Distribution costs related to the wholesale business are included in selling, general and administrative
expenses and amounted to $8.2 million, $7.6 million and $8.3 million for the years ended December 31, 
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company includes store selling, selling and merchandising, 
advertising, wholesale distribution costs, design and other corporate overhead costs as a component of 
selling, general and administrative expenses. 

Shipping Income and Expenses 

The Company classifies amounts billed to customers for shipping fees as revenues, and classifies costs 
related to shipping as cost of product sales in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Guess?, Inc. and its wholly-owned 
direct and indirect subsidiaries as follows:  Guess? Retail, Inc., Guess? Licensing, Inc., Guess.com, Inc.,
Guess? Value LLC, Guess? IP LP LLC, Guess? IP GP LLC, Guess? IP Holder L.P., Guess? Royalty
Finance, LLC, Guess? Europe, B.V., a Netherlands corporation (“GEBV”), Guess? Canada Corporation 
(“Guess Canada”, formerly named Strandel Inc.), a Canadian corporation, Guess? Canada Retail, Inc., a 
Canadian corporation, and Guess Italia, S.r.l., an Italian corporation. Accordingly, all references herein to
“Guess?, Inc.” include the consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries. All intercompany
accounts and transactions are eliminated during the consolidation process. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and disclosed in the accompanying notes. 
Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the valuation of inventories, 
accounts receivable allowances, the useful life of assets for depreciation, restructuring expense and 
accruals, evaluation of impairment, recoverability of deferred taxes and evaluation of net recoverable 
amounts and accruals for the sublet of certain lease obligations. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices (Continued) 

Investment Securities 

The Company accounts for its investment securities in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, “Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” (“SFAS 115”). SFAS 115 requires investments to be 
classified into one of three categories based on management’s intent: held-to-maturity securities, 
available-for-sale securities and trading securities. Held-to-maturity securities are recorded at their 
amortized cost. Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value with unrealized gains and losses 
reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Trading securities are recorded at market value 
with unrealized gains and losses reported in operations. The Company accounts for its short-term 
investment securities as available-for-sale. 

Earnings(Loss) per Share 

Basic earnings (loss) per share represents net earnings (loss) divided by the weighted-average number
of shares of common stock outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share represents net
earnings divided by the weighted-average number of shares outstanding, inclusive of the dilutive impact of
common stock equivalents such as stock options.

The reconciliation of basic to diluted weighted average shares is as follows (in thousands):  

Year ended December 31, 
 2004  2003  2002

Weighted average shares used in basic computations . . . . 44,010 43,279 43,392
Dilutive stock options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 534 279 —

Weighted average shares used in diluted computation .  44,544 43,558 43,392

For the fiscal years 2004 and 2003, the difference between basic and diluted earnings per share was
due to the potential dilutive impact of options to purchase common stock. The diluted loss per share for 
fiscal year 2002 was computed using the basic weighted-average number of shares outstanding and
excluded 132,189 potentially dilutive shares, as their effect would be anti-dilutive when applied to losses.
Options to purchase 1,080,782, and 1,294,477 shares of common stock at prices ranging from $15.52 to 
$27.31, and $6.51 to $27.31 were outstanding during 2004 and 2003, respectively, but were not included in
the computation of diluted earnings per share because the option exercise prices were greater than the 
average market price of the shares of common stock and therefore such options would be anti-dilutive. 

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist
primarily of accounts receivable. The Company maintains cash with various major financial institutions and
performs evaluations of the relative credit standing of these financial institutions in order to limit the 
amount of credit exposure with any institution. The Company extends credit to corporate customers based
upon an evaluation of the customer’s financial condition and credit history and generally requires no
collateral. The Company’s customers are principally located throughout North America, and their ability 
to pay amounts due to the Company may be dependent on the prevailing economic conditions of their 
geographic region. However, such credit risk is considered limited due to the Company’s large customer 
base. Management performs regular evaluations concerning the ability of its customers to satisfy their
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices (Continued) 

obligations and records a provision for doubtful accounts based on these evaluations. The Company’s 
credit losses for the periods presented are insignificant and have not significantly exceeded management’s 
estimates. A few of the Company’s domestic wholesale customers, including some under common 
ownership, have accounted for significant portions of its total net revenue. Bloomingdale’s, Macy’s and 
other affiliated stores owned by Federated Department Stores, Inc. together accounted for approximately
5.1%, 6.4%, and 8.9% of the Company’s net revenue in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out and weighted average method) or market. 
The Company continually evaluates its inventories by assessing slow moving current product as well as 
prior seasons’ inventory. Market value of non-current inventory is estimated based on historical sales 
trends for this category of inventory of the Company’s individual product lines, the impact of market
trends, an evaluation of economic conditions and the value of current orders relating to the future sales of
this type of inventory. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company recognizes retail operations revenue at the point of sale, and wholesale operations
revenue from the sale of merchandise when products are shipped and the customer takes title and assumes
risk of loss, collection of relevant receivable is probable, pervasive evidence of an arrangement exists, and
the sales price is fixed or determinable. Royalty income is based upon a percentage, as defined in the 
underlying agreement, of the licensee’s actual net sales or minimum net sales, whichever is greater. The 
Company may receive payments in consideration of the grant of license rights. These payments are
recognized as revenue over the term of the license agreement. The Company accrues for estimated sales
returns and other allowances in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. 

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment are provided using the straight-line method
over the following useful lives:

Building and building improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 to 31 years
Land improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 years
Machinery and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 years
Corporate aircraft. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 years
Corporate vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 years
Shop fixtures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the estimated useful life of the asset or the 
initial term of the lease. Construction in progress is not depreciated until the related asset is completed
and placed in service. 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices (Continued) 

Foreign Currency Translation 

The local currency is the functional currency for all of our international operations. In accordance 
with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation,” assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign 
operations are translated from foreign currencies into U.S. dollars at year-end rates, while income and 
expenses are translated at the weighted-average exchange rates for the year. The related translation
adjustments are reflected as a foreign currency translation adjustment in other comprehensive income
(loss) as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Transaction gains and losses that arise from
exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated in a currency other than the local functional
currency are included in the results of operations. Foreign currency transaction losses included in the 
determination of net earnings (loss) were $(864,000), $(785,000) and $(238,000) for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

Foreign Currency Contracts 

The Company may enter into forward foreign exchange contracts in the ordinary course of business to 
mitigate the risk associated with foreign exchange rate fluctuations related to Canadian purchases of U.S.
dollar denominated inventory and Italian purchases of U.S. dollar denominated inventory. The Company’s 
foreign currency contracts are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes and changes in fair value
of the derivative instruments are included in net earnings (loss). At December 31, 2004, the Company had
forward exchange contracts to purchase $16.8 million U.S. dollars for approximately $11.6 million
Canadian dollars and approximately 6.1 million Euros. At December 31, 2003, the Company had forward
exchange contracts to purchase $7.3 million U.S. dollars for approximately $9.8 million Canadian dollars. 

Unrealized gains and losses on outstanding foreign currency exchange contracts, used to mitigate
currency risk on future revenues and purchases, are included in earnings as a component of other income 
or expense. Unrealized gains (loss) were $(1,086,000), $(347,000) and $2,000 for the years ended 
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. 

Deferred Rent and Lease Incentives 

When a lease includes lease incentives (such as a rent holiday or reimbursement of certain lessee 
construction costs) or requires fixed escalations of the minimum lease payments, rental expense is 
recognized on a straight-line basis over the initial term of the lease and the difference between the average
rental amount charged to expense and amounts payable under the lease is included in deferred rent and 
lease incentives in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

Income Taxes 

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, 
deferred income taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between 
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to be applied to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date. 
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices (Continued) 

Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net earnings (loss), unrealized gains or losses on investments 
and foreign currency translation adjustments and is presented in the consolidated statements of 
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss).

Business Segment Reporting 

The Company reports information about business segments and related disclosures about products
and services, geographic areas and major customers. The business segments of the Company are retail,
wholesale and licensing. Information regarding these segments is summarized in Note 14 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The carrying amount of the Company’s financial instruments, which principally include cash, trade
receivables, accounts payable and accrued expenses, approximates fair value due to the relatively short 
maturity of such instruments. Investments are recorded at fair value. 

The fair value of the Company’s debt instruments are based on the amount of future cash flows
associated with each instrument discounted using the Company’s borrowing rate. At December 31, 2004
and 2003, the carrying value of all financial instruments was not materially different from fair value, as the
fixed rate debt approximates rates currently available to the Company. 

Long-Lived Assets 

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“SFAS 144”), long-lived
assets, such as property, plant, and equipment, and purchased intangibles subject to amortization, are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of 
an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison
of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated
by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment 
charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the 
asset. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the
lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. The assets and 
liabilities of a disposed group classified as held for sale would be presented separately in the appropriate
asset and liability sections of the balance sheet. 

Goodwill and other intangibles not subject to amortization are tested annually for impairment, and 
are tested for impairment more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be
impaired. An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset’s fair 
value. This determination is made at the reporting unit level and consists of two steps. First, the Company 
determines the fair value of a reporting unit and compares it to its carrying amount. Second, if the carrying 
amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the 
carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill and other intangibles over the implied fair value. The 
implied fair value is determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a 
purchase price allocation, in accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. The residual fair
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices (Continued) 

value after this allocation is the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill and other intangibles. As 
of December 31, 2004, we had goodwill of approximately $11.6 million. No write-downs have been
recognized for the year ended December 31, 2004, 2003, or 2002. 

Advertising Costs 

The Company expenses the cost of advertising as incurred. Advertising expenses charged to
operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $22.7 million, $17.4 million, and
$21.6 million, respectively. 

Reclassifications 

In 2004, the Company changed how it presents in the statement of cash flows lease incentives for store
leasehold improvement costs received from landlords. Previously, the Company presented purchases of
property and equipment net of lease incentives in the statement of cash flows. The Company is now 
including these lease incentives as a component of net cash provided by operating activities and showing
the purchases of property and equipment (excluding lease incentives) as a component of net cash used in
investing activities. The impact of this reclassification was to increase purchases of property and equipment 
and net cash provided by operating activities from previously reported amounts by $3.5 million and $6.7 
million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

The Company has made certain other reclassifications to prior years’ consolidated financial
statements to conform to classifications used in the current year. These reclassifications, including the 
above, had no impact on previously reported results. 

Employee Stock Options 

The Company has stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 
15. The Company accounts for those plans under the recognition and measurement principles of APB 
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. No stock-based 
employee compensation cost for stock options is reflected in net earnings (loss), as all options granted 
under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the 
date of grant. In addition, no compensation expense is recognized for common stock purchases under the 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The Company records compensation expense related to its restricted stock 
award plan in which the market price of the underlying stock at grant is recorded as unearned
compensation and amortized to expense over the vesting period. The following table illustrates the effect 
on net earnings (loss) and earnings (loss) per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices (Continued) 

provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, “ Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended, to
stock-based employee compensation (in thousands, except per share data): 

Year ended December 31, 
2004  2003 2002

Net earnings (loss), as reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $29,566 $ 7,286 $(11,282)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported

net income, net of related tax effects. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  564 268  820
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined 

under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects . .  (1,960 ) (1,790 ) (1,998)
Pro forma net earnings (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $28,170 $ 5,764 $(12,460)

Earnings (loss) per share: 
Basic—as reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.67 $ 0.17 $ (0.26)
Basic—pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.64 $ 0.13 $ (0.29)
Diluted—as reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.66 $ 0.17 $ (0.26)
Diluted—pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.63 $ 0.13 $ (0.29)

(2) New Accounting Standards 

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151 (“SFAS 151”), “Inventory Costs an amendment of 
ARB No. 43, Chapter 4.” SFAS 151 clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense,
freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage) and requires that those items be recognized as 
current-period charges. SFAS 151 also requires that allocation of fixed production overhead to the costs of 
conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS 151 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 151 is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations. 

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (R) (“SFAS 123 (R)”), “Share-Based Payment.” 
SFAS 123 (R) requires that companies recognize the grant-date fair value of stock options and other
equity-based compensation issued to employees in the income statement.  SFAS 123 (R) generally requires 
that companies account for those transactions using the fair-value-based method, and eliminates using the
intrinsic value method of accounting in APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.”  
SFAS 123 (R) is effective for the Company beginning with the third quarter of 2005.  If SFAS 123 (R) had 
been adopted at the beginning of 2004, the impact would have been to reduce fully diluted earnings per 
share by approximately $0.03 per share. 

(3) Investments 

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, short-term investments included in prepaid expenses and other 
current assets consist of $1.9 million and $1.6 million, respectively, of marketable securities available for 
sale. 

Long-term investments consist of certain marketable equity securities aggregating $0.7 million and 
$0.4 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and are included in other assets in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Unrealized gains related to marketable equity securities at
December 31, 2004, amounted to $0.1 million, net of deferred tax liabilities of $0.1 million, and unrealized  
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(3) Investments (Continued) 

gains of $0.3 million at December 31, 2003, net of deferred tax liabilities of $0.3 million are included as a
component of stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss).

(4) Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consists of trade receivables, less reserves aggregating $8,678,000 and $8,092,000, 
and royalty receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $709,000 and $1,705,000 at December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively. 

(5) Inventories 

Inventories are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

December 31, 
2004 2003

Raw materials . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 9,089 $ 7,312 
Work in process . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,431 1,718 
Finished goods—retail. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51,887 52,090
Finished goods—wholesale. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,922 22,410

$82,329  $ 83,530

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, reserves for write-downs of inventories to the lower of cost or market 
totaled $5.4 million and $7.9 million, respectively. 

(6) Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment is summarized as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 
 2004  2003

Land and land improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,237 $ 3,237
Building and building improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,324 3,324
Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  133,257 123,054
Machinery and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 159,175 149,798
Corporate aircraft. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,253 6,601
Shop fixtures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  36,068 36,637
Construction in progress . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,708 8,530

 345,022  331,181 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization. . . . . . . . . . . . . 231,078 216,778

 $113,944  $114,403 

Construction in progress at December 31, 2004 and 2003 represents the costs associated with the
construction in progress of buildings and improvements to be used in the Company’s operations. During
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, interest costs capitalized in construction in progress
amounted to $109,000, $411,000, and $156,000, respectively. 
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(6) Property and Equipment (Continued)

The Company recorded a charge for the impairment of long-lived assets of $1.6 million during fiscal
year 2003 to write down the net book value of property and equipment related to certain under-performing
stores, consisting primarily of leasehold improvements, and machinery and equipment. These write-downs 
resulted in a direct reduction of leasehold improvements of $2.4 million and a reduction in machinery and
equipment of $1.6 million in 2003. Additionally, accumulated depreciation and amortization were reduced
by $2.4 million in 2003 as a result of these impairments. 

(7) Accrued Expenses 

Accrued expenses are summarized as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 
 2004  2003

Accrued compensation and benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $14,992 $12,816
Sales and use taxes, property taxes, and income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . 18,816 11,032
Store credits and gift certificates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,521 5,588
Deferred rent and lease incentives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,613 8,082
Construction costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,259 2,497
Advertising. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,348 525
Deferred royalties. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,713 —
Professional fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,426 1,598
Freight . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,005 324
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,518 9,594

 $ 61,211 $ 52,056

(8) Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt 

Notes payable and long-term debt are summarized as follows (in thousands): 

December 31, 
 2004  2003

6.75% Secured Notes due 2012 with interest payable quarterly in 
March, June, September and December . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $54,161 $66,785

$85 million revolving credit facility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 648 —
Other obligations, maturing in varying amounts through 2005 . . . 17 1,307 

 54,826 68,092
Less current installments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,430 13,931
Long-term debt, excluding current installments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $41,396 $54,161

On September 27, 2002, the Company entered into a new credit facility led by Wachovia
Securities, Inc., as Arranger and Administrative Agent (“Credit Facility”), which replaced a previous credit
agreement. The Credit Facility has a term of four years and provides for a maximum line of credit of $85 
million, including an amount made available to the Company’s Canadian subsidiaries under a separate 
credit agreement (currently $15 million). The Credit Facility includes a $47.5 million sub-limit for letters of
credit. Borrowings available under the Credit Facility are subject to a borrowing base and outstanding
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(8) Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

borrowings are secured by inventory, accounts receivable and substantially all other personal property of
the borrowers. 

For borrowings under the Credit Facility, the Company may elect an interest rate based on either the
Prime Rate or a Eurodollar rate plus a margin, which fluctuates depending on availability under the Credit
Facility and the Company’s financial performance as measured by a cash flow test. This margin ranges
from 0 to 75 basis points for Prime Rate loans and from 175 to 250 basis points for Eurodollar rate loans. 
Monthly commitment fees for unused borrowings up to $60 million under the Credit Facility are 37.5 basis 
points per annum. The Credit Facility requires the Company to maintain a minimum tangible net worth, as 
defined, if excess availability under the Credit Facility is less than $20 million. The agreement also restricts 
the payment of dividends by the Company, the incurrence of certain indebtedness and certain loans, and 
investments other than capital expenditures. 

On December 30, 2004, the Company and certain of its affiliates entered into an amendment to the
Credit Facility. The amendment, among other things, (i) increases to $55 million the aggregate amount of 
letters of credit that may be outstanding under the loan agreement, and limits the amount of letters of 
credit that may be issued in currencies other than U.S. dollars to $35 million, (ii) permits the acquisition by 
the Company and its affiliates of the remaining shares of capital stock not currently owned by the
Company and its affiliates of Maco Apparel S.p.A. (“Maco”), a former licensee of the Company, and 
(iii) permits the guarantee of certain indebtedness by the Company and its affiliates in connection with the
acquisition. The documents covering the Canadian portion of the Credit Facility were also amended to
permit the actions described in clauses (ii) and (iii) above. At December 31, 2004, the Company had $0.7 
million in outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility; it had $2.5 million in outstanding standby 
letters of credit, $11.0 million in outstanding documentary letters of credit, and approximately $43.6
million available for future borrowings. As of December 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with all
of its covenants under the Credit Facility. 

On April 28, 2003, Guess? Royalty Finance LLC, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Issuer”), issued in a private placement $75 million of 6.75% asset-backed notes due June 2012 
(“Secured Notes”). The Secured Notes are secured by rights and interests in receivables generated from 
specific license agreements of specified GUESS? trademarks and all royalty monies payable or becoming
payable under such license agreements, and a security interest in specified assets consisting primarily of 
such GUESS? trademarks and the specified license agreements. The Secured Notes pay interest and 
amortize principal quarterly. Payment of principal and interest on the Secured Notes is guaranteed by
Guess? IP Holder L.P. (“IP Holder”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which is the 
owner of substantially all of the Company’s domestic and many of the Company’s foreign trademarks. 
Under the terms of the Secured Notes, the Issuer, IP Holder and the applicable indenture trustee have
each agreed that none of them will take any action that would result in a material breach or impairment of
any of the rights of any licensee under any license of the trademarks held by IP Holder, including the 
concurrent license of such trademarks back to the Company. The Secured Notes are subject to an interest 
reserve account in an amount equal to the greater of (1) the product of the interest rate and the
outstanding principal amount or (2) $1,750,000. At December 31, 2004, the Company had $3.7 million of 
restricted cash related to the interest reserve. The net proceeds, after interest reserves and expenses, of 
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(8) Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

approximately $66.8 million, along with available cash and borrowings under the Credit Facility, were used
to repay the 9½% Senior Subordinated Notes due August 2003. The Company redeemed the 9½% Senior
Subordinated Notes for redemption on May 27, 2003. 

Maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

2005. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 13,430
2006. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  13,643
2007. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  12,887
2008. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8,937 
2009. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,929 

 $ 54,826

(9) Income Taxes 

Income tax expense (benefit) is summarized as follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31, 
 2004 2003 2002

Federal:
Current. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $13,775 $ (704) $ (2,492)
Deferred. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (457) 4,312 (4,475)

State:  
Current. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4,143 493 (93)
Deferred. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (644) 235 (926)

Foreign:
Current. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4,473 994 1,113
Deferred. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (143) 170 1,323

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $21,147 $ 5,500 $ (5,550)

Actual income tax expense (benefit) differs from expected income tax expense (benefit) obtained by 
applying the statutory Federal income tax rate to earnings before income taxes as follows (in thousands): 

Year ended December 31, 
2004 2003 2002

Computed “expected” tax expense (benefit) . . . . . . . . . . $17,750 $4,475 $(5,891 )
State taxes, net of Federal benefit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,274 472 (662 )
Foreign taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 670 213 259 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  453 340 744 
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $21,147 $5,500 $(5,550 )
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(9) Income Taxes (Continued) 

Total income tax expense (benefit) was allocated as follows (in thousands): 

Year ended December 31, 
2004 2003 2002

Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $21,147 $5,500 $(5,550 )
Stockholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (917) 14 (159 )
Total income taxes (benefit). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $20,230 $5,514 $(5,709 )

The tax effects of the components of other comprehensive income were allocated as follows (in 
thousands): 

Year ended December 31, 
2004 2003 2002

Foreign currency translation adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (57) $1,071 $ — 
Unrealized loss on investment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 107 (257) (100 )
Total income tax expense (benefit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 50 $ 814 $(100 )

Total pretax income (loss) was comprised of the following (in thousands): 

Year ended December 31, 
 2004  2003 2002

Domestic operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $40,237 $ 10,109 $ (23,000)
Foreign operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,476 2,677 6,168
Total pretax income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $50,713 $ 12,786 $ (16,832)
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(9) Income Taxes (Continued) 

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of current and
non-current deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are presented 
below (in thousands):

December 31, 
 2004  2003

Deferred tax assets: 
Fixed assets basis difference . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,945 $ 8,488 
Bad debt and other reserves . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,898 2,844 
Deferred lease incentives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,131 4,440 
Uniform capitalization adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,578 1,657 
Rent expense. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,063 1,505 
Inventory valuation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 911 1,087 
Retail store closure reserves. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 133 418 
Unrealized loss on investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,885 1,588 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,637 4,877 
Total deferred assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30,181 26,904

Deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,687) (3,155 )
NOL carryback/carryforward . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2,148 
Valuation reserve . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (154 )
Net deferred tax assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $27,494 $ 25,743

Included above at December 31, 2004 and 2003, are $10.6 million and $9.5 million for current
deferred tax assets, respectively, and $16.9 million and $16.2 million in non-current deferred tax assets 
included in other assets at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. At December 31, 2004, the 
Company’s Canadian operation had net operating loss carryforwards of $4.2 million which are available to
reduce future taxable Canadian income through 2008. 

Based on the historical earnings of the Company and projections of future taxable income, 
management believes it is more likely than not that the results of operations will generate sufficient taxable 
earnings to realize net deferred tax assets. 

(10) Related Party Transactions

The Company is engaged in various transactions with entities affiliated with trusts for the respective
benefit of Maurice and Paul Marciano, who are executives of the Company, Armand Marciano, their
brother and former executive of the Company, and certain of their children (the “Marciano Trusts”). 

License Agreements and Licensee Transactions

On September 28, 1990, the Company entered into a license agreement with Charles David of 
California (“Charles David”). Charles David is controlled by the father-in-law of Maurice Marciano. The
Marciano Trusts and Nathalie Marciano (the spouse of Maurice Marciano) together owned 50% of 
Charles David and the remaining 50% was owned by the father-in-law of Maurice Marciano. During the
second quarter of 2004, the Marciano Trusts and Armand Marciano sold their shares in Charles David and
no longer own any shares in Charles David. Nathalie Marciano, the wife of Maurice Marciano, continues 
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(10) Related Party Transactions (Continued) 

to own 10% of the shares in Charles David. The license agreement grants Charles David the rights to
manufacture worldwide and distribute worldwide (except Japan and certain European countries) for men, 
women and some children, leather and rubber footwear which bear the GUESS trademark. The license 
also includes related shoe care products and accessories. In 2002, the license agreement was renewed for 
six years and included athletic footwear. There are no other rights and obligations between the Company 
and Charles David. The Charles David license agreement was terminated effective December 31, 2004 for 
athletic footwear and June 30, 2005 for fashion footwear. 

Gross royalties earned by the Company under such license agreement for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $2.3 million, $2.4 million, and $2.0 million, respectively. 
Additionally, the Company purchased $4.9 million, $5.9 million, and $5.7 million of products from Charles 
David for resale in the Company’s retail stores during the same periods. At both December 31, 2004 and
2003, the Company had royalty receivables due from Charles David of $0.4 million. 

In May 1997, the Company sold substantially all of the assets and liabilities of Guess Italia to Maco 
Apparel, S.p.a. (“Maco”). The effect of the net asset disposal was immaterial to the Company’s results of 
operations. In connection with this sale, the Company also purchased a 10% ownership interest in Maco 
and entered into an approximate 10-year license agreement with Maco granting it the right to manufacture
and distribute certain men’s and women’s jeanswear apparel, which bear the GUESS trademark, in certain 
parts of Europe. In addition to royalty fees, the Company also received $14.1 million over a four-year
period in consideration of the grant of the license rights for men’s and women’s jeanswear apparel. The 
Company recorded $5.9 million, $5.8 million and $4.7 million in royalty fees from Maco related to product 
sales in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The royalty fees for fiscal year 2003 included a $0.7 million
positive royalty adjustment from a licensee audit. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had
royalty receivables due from MACO of $1.1 million and $0.9 million, respectively. The remaining 90% of 
Maco not already owned by the Company was acquired effective January 3, 2005. See Note 18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

On January 1, 2003, the Company entered into a license agreement with BARN S.r.l. (“BARN”), an
Italian corporation, under which the Company granted BARN the right to manufacture and distribute 
children’s clothing in certain territories of Europe. The license has an initial term of three years and has
terms substantially similar to the Company’s other license agreements. Two key employees of the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary Guess Italia own BARN. In addition, Guess Italia, S.r.l. provides 
office space and services for BARN. During 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded $0.5 million and $0.3 
million, respectively, in revenues related to this license. At both December 31, 2004 and 2003 the Company 
had an outstanding receivable due from BARN of $0.1 million. 

Leases 

The Company leases manufacturing, warehouse and administrative facilities from partnerships
affiliated with the Marciano Trusts and certain of its affiliates. There are two leases in effect at
December 31, 2004, which expire in February 2006 and July 2008. The total lease payments to these limited
partnerships are currently $0.2 million per month. Aggregate lease payments under leases in effect for the 
fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $3.1 million, $3.4 million, and $2.9 million, 
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respectively. The Company believes the related party leases have not been significantly affected by the fact
that the Company and the lessors are related. See lease commitments to related parties in Note 11 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

(11) Commitments and Contingencies 

Leases 

The Company leases its showrooms and retail store locations under operating lease agreements
expiring on various dates through March 2016. Some of these leases require the Company to make 
periodic payments for property taxes and common area operating expenses. Certain leases include lease
incentives, rent abatements and fixed rent escalations, for which the effects are being amortized and
recorded over the initial lease term on a straight line basis. The Company also leases some of its 
equipment under operating lease agreements expiring at various dates through 2009. 

Future minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases at December 31, 2004 are as
follows (in thousands): 

Non-
Related
Parties  

Related 
Parties  Total 

2005. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 61,042 $2,736 $ 63,778
2006. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  59,465 2,701 62,166
2007. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  56,341 2,695 59,036
2008. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  52,821 1,564 54,385
2009. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  51,169 — 51,169
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  150,382 — 150,382 

 $431,220 $9,696  $440,916 

Rental expense for all operating leases during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002
aggregated $63.4 million, $59.2 million, and $53.1 million, respectively. 

Incentive Bonuses 

Certain officers and key employees of the Company are entitled to incentive bonuses, primarily based 
on the Company’s profits. 

Litigation 

Most major corporations, particularly those operating retail businesses, become involved from time to
time in a variety of employment-related claims and other matters incidental to their business. In the
opinion of our management, the resolution of any of these pending incidental matters is not expected to
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition; however, we cannot
predict the outcome of these matters. No material amounts were accrued as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, related to the Company’s litigation. 
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(12) Savings Plan 

The Company established the Guess?, Inc. Savings Plan (the “Savings Plan”) under Section 401(k) of 
the Internal Revenue Code. Under the Savings Plan, employees (“associates”) may contribute up to 15% 
of their compensation per year subject to the elective limits as defined by IRS guidelines and the Company
may make matching contributions in amounts not to exceed 1.5% of the associates’ annual compensation. 
Investment selections consist of cash and mutual funds and do not include any Company common stock. 
The Company’s contributions to the Savings Plan for the year ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 
amounted to $0.3 million, $0.3 million, and $0.3 million, respectively.

In January 2002, the Company established a qualified employee stock purchase plan (“ESPP”), the 
terms of which allow for qualified employees (as defined) to participate in the purchase of designated
shares of the Company’s common stock at a price equal to 85% of the lower of the closing price at the
beginning or end of each quarterly stock purchase period. The ESPP is a straight purchase plan and is not
subject to any holding period, however all Company employees are subject to the terms of the Company’s 
securities trading policy which generally prohibits the purchase or sale of any Company securities during 
the two weeks before the end of each fiscal quarter through the public announcement by the Company of
its earnings for that period. On January 23, 2002, the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission Form S-8 registering 2,000,000 shares of common stock for the ESPP. 

During the fiscal year 2004, 35,397 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued out of its 
treasury shares pursuant to the ESPP at an average price of $12.78 per share for a total of $0.5 million. 

(13) Quarterly Information (unaudited) 

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly financial information for the years ended 
December 31, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands, except per share data): 

Year ended December 31, 2004 
First 

Quarter  
Second
Quarter  

Third 
Quarter  

Fourth 
Quarter 

Net revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $153,345 $154,097 $197,837 $223,983
Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  52,530 57,790 75,254 88,410
Net earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 756 2,131 11,826 14,853
Earnings per share: 

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.02 $ 0.05 $ 0.27 $ 0.34
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.02 $ 0.05 $ 0.27 $ 0.33

Year ended December 31, 2003 
First 

Quarter  
Second
Quarter  

Third 
Quarter  

Fourth 
Quarter 

Net revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $139,584 $131,042 $166,674 $199,285
Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  41,349 40,987 61,596 76,223
Net earnings (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (5,773) (5,445) 6,697 11,807
Earnings (loss) per share: 

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (0.13) $ (0.13) $ 0.15 $ 0.27
Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (0.13) $ (0.13) $ 0.15 $ 0.27

During the second quarter ended June 28, 2003, the Company recorded restructuring, impairment
and severance charges of $0.8 million related to severance payments for the reduction in the Company’s 
workforce. 
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(13) Quarterly Information (unaudited) (Continued) 

During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company recorded $1.6 million of impairment charges which
represented the write-down of the value of certain impaired assets. 

(14) Segment Information 

In accordance with the requirements of SFAS 131, “Disclosures about Segments of and Enterprise
and Related Information,” the Company’s reportable business segments and respective accounting policies 
of the segments are the same as those described in Note 1. Management evaluates segment performance
based primarily on revenue and earnings from operations. Interest income and expense is evaluated on a
consolidated basis and not allocated to the Company’s business segments. 

Segment information is summarized as follows for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 
(in thousands): 

Year ended December 31, 
 2004  2003  2002

Net revenue:
Retail operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $518,855 $447,693 $384,456
Wholesale operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  163,165 149,113 159,625
Licensing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  47,242 39,779 39,058

 $729,262 $636,585  $583,139 
Earnings (loss) from operations: 

Retail operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 47,788 $ 32,370 $ 4,373
Wholesale operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,183 (8,976 ) (4,738 )
Licensing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  37,722 32,281 29,092
Corporate overhead. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (32,211) (35,075 ) (37,253 )

 $ 55,482 $ 20,600 $ (8,526)
Capital expenditures: 

Retail operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 27,577 $ 15,348 $ 19,661
Wholesale operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,879 981 1,970
Licensing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  — — —
Corporate overhead. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4,323 5,332 7,754

 $ 34,779 $ 21,661 $ 29,385

December 31, 
 2004  2003

Total assets: 
Retail operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $158,690 $135,732
Wholesale operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 113,171 93,796
Licensing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  16,944 14,062
Corporate overhead. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  135,499 119,175

$424,304 $ 362,765
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(14) Segment Information (Continued) 

The table below presents information related to geographic areas in which the Company operated
during 2004, 2003 and 2002 (in thousands):

Year ended December 31, 
 2004  2003  2002

Net revenue:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $570,610 $513,537 $477,700
Canada . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  86,212 67,673 52,709
Europe . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  54,125 35,256 30,251
Asia. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  15,506 16,252 17,166
South America . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,499 1,962 2,986
Mexico . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  271 956 1,896
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,039 949 431

 $729,262 $636,585  $583,139 

December 31, 
 2004  2003

Long-lived assets:
U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $116,486 $120,472
Canada . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  14,374 12,627
Europe . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5,446 2,693
Asia. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  81 85

 $136,387 $135,877 

(15) Stock Option Plan and Non-Vested Stock 

On July 30, 1996, the Board of Directors adopted the Guess?, Inc. 1996 Non-Employee Directors’ 
Stock Option Plan pursuant to which the Board of Directors may grant stock and stock options to
non-employee directors. This plan authorizes grants of options to purchase up to 500,000 authorized but 
unissued shares of common stock. At December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, there were 174,836, 228,340, and
267,273 additional shares available for grant under this plan, respectively. Stock options are granted with
an exercise price equal to the stock’s fair market value at the date of grant. Annual option grants to outside
directors were at 85% of fair market value until May 2002. Subsequently such grants have been at 100% of 
fair market value. Stock granted under the Plan is done so without restriction. Stock options have ten-year 
terms and vest and become fully exercisable in increments of one-fourth of the shares granted on each
anniversary from the date of grant. 

On July 30, 1996, the Board of Directors adopted the Guess?, Inc. 1996 Equity Incentive Plan
pursuant to which the Board of Directors may grant stock options to officers, key employees and 
consultants. This plan authorizes grants of options to purchase up to 4,500,000 authorized but unissued
shares of common stock. Stock options are granted with an exercise price equal to the stock’s fair market 
value at the date of grant. Stock options have ten-year terms (five years in the case of an incentive stock
option granted to a ten-percent stockholder) and vest and become fully exercisable after varying time 
periods from the date of grant based on length of service or specified performance goals. As of 
December 31, 2004, future grants under this plan were terminated. 
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(15) Stock Option Plan and Non-Vested Stock (Continued) 

On April 9, 2004, the Board of Directors adopted the Guess?, Inc. 2004 Equity Incentive Plan (the
“Plan”) pursuant to which the Board of Directors may grant stock options to officers, key employees or any 
of the officers or key employees of our subsidiaries and certain consultants and advisors to the Company or
any of our subsidiaries. On May 10, 2004, the shareholders of the Company approved the Plan. The Plan 
authorizes grants of options to purchase up to 10,000,000 authorized but unissued shares of common stock. 
The termination of grant authority under the 1996 Incentive Plan will not affect awards then outstanding 
under that plan. On December 22, 2004, the Company filed a registration statement under Form S-8 
registering 5,000,000 of the 10,000,000 shares authorized for grant under the Plan. At December 31, 2004, 
there were 9,892,500 additional shares available for grant under the Plan. 

Using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, the weighted-average per share fair value of stock 
options granted during 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $9.53, $3.47, and $4.99, respectively. The fair value for 
these options was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following weighted-average assumptions for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively: risk-free interest rates of
3.43%, 2.97%, and 3.82%; volatility factors of the expected market price of the Company’s common stock 
of 69%, 73%, and 76%; no expected dividend yield; and a weighted-average expected life of the option of 
four years. 

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options, which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models 
require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because 
options under the Company’s stock option plan have characteristics significantly different from those of 
traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value
estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of the options under the Company’s stock option plan. 

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 in accounting for its Plan and, accordingly, no 
compensation cost has been recognized for its stock options in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, because the exercise price of the Company’s employee stock options equals the market price of 
the underlying stock on the date of grant. The Company granted 114,500, 77,000 and 242,900 shares during
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, of common stock to key employees and directors, which vest 
through 2007. Upon granting of the stock, unearned compensation equivalent to the market value of the 
stock at the date of issuance was charged to stockholders’ equity. This is being amortized on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period and is recognized as compensation expense. 
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(15) Stock Option Plan and Non-Vested Stock (Continued) 

Stock option activity under all of the Company’s stock plans during the period indicated is as follows:  

Number of
Shares

Weighted-Average 
Exercise Price 

Balance at December 31, 2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,959,805 $ 9.39
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  785,269 4.69
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (262,007)  (1.19)  
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (437,478)  (10.96)  

Balance at December 31, 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,045,589 $ 8.31
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  807,866 4.81
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (473,828)  (5.90)  
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (463,270)  (7.97)  

Balance at December 31, 2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,916,357 $ 7.51
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,373,665 14.19
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (489,872)  (4.96)  
Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (361,835)  (10.78)  

Balance at December 31, 2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,438,315 $ 11.30

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2004. 

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable 

Range of Exercise Price 

Number 
Outstanding 

December 31, 2004

Weighted Average
Remaining 

Contractual life
Weighted Average

Exercise Price 

Number 
Exercisable at 

December 31, 2004
Weighted Average

Exercise Price 
$3.63 to $4.78 . . . . . . . . 664,034 6.77 years $ 4.35 387,935 $ 4.52
$5.00 to $6.55 . . . . . . . . 140,500 7.25 years 5.48 61,000 5.58
$7.00 to $7.75 . . . . . . . . 260,582 7.94 years 7.35 64,432 7.33
$8.21 to $14.75 . . . . . . . 185,459 8.97 years 12.04 30,376 11.00 
$15.06 to $16.38 . . . . . . 966,130 9.07 years 15.61 26,966 16.36 
$17.00 to $27.31 . . . . . . 221,610 7.09 years 21.10 122,110 24.39 

2,438,315 8.03 years $11.30 692,819 $ 9.12

At December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the number of options exercisable for each year was 692,819, 
732,224, and 869,583, respectively. The weighted-average exercise price of those options was $9.12, $9.83, 
and $9.46, respectively. 

(16) Share Repurchase Program 

In May 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase shares of its 
own stock in an amount of up to $15 million from time to time in open market transactions. During the 
fiscal year of 2002, the Company purchased 606,000 shares at an aggregate cost of $3.2 million, or an 
average of $5.21 per share. No share repurchases were made during the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003. Since the inception of the share repurchase program in May 2001, the Company has purchased
1,137,000 shares at an aggregated cost of $7.1 million, or an average of $6.26 per share. 
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(17) Restructuring, Impairment and Severance Charges 

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company recorded restructuring, impairment and 
severance charges of $2.4 million ($1.4 million after tax or $0.06 per diluted share). In addition to the 
charge of $0.8 million related to severance payments for the reduction in the Company’s workforce, in 
accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” an
impairment charge of $1.6 million represented the write-down of the net book value of property and
equipment related to certain under-performing stores, consisting primarily of leasehold improvements, and 
machinery and equipment. These assets became impaired as the Company evaluated certain unprofitable
stores that performed below expectations. Estimated future cash flows related to these stores indicated 
that an impairment of the full value had occurred. 

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company recorded restructuring, impairment and 
severance charges of $9.2 million ($6.2 million after tax or $0.14 per diluted share). The Company
recorded $1.5 million in additional costs for rent paid, estimated rent to be paid and lease exit costs related
to excess leased facilities and under performing stores which were abandoned or closed in 2003. In
addition, in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” an impairment charge of $6.9 million was recorded in the fourth quarter of 2002 to write down the 
net book value of property and equipment related to certain under-performing stores, consisting primarily 
of leasehold improvements, and machinery and equipment. These assets became impaired as the Company
evaluated certain unprofitable stores that performed below expectations. Estimated future cash flows 
related to these stores indicated that an impairment of the full value had occurred. 

The remaining $0.8 million of the charge was related to severance costs for the termination of 59
employees, which was part of the Company’s continuing efforts to reduce costs, improve productivity,
streamline its corporate structure and consolidate operations. Approximately $0.4 million of the severance
remained unpaid and accrued as of December 31, 2002. The Company paid the remaining severance costs 
during 2003. 

The following table shows the Company’s activity associated with restructuring accruals for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002:

 Restructuring  December 31,
January 1, 2004 Charges Payments 2004

Long-term lease obligations . . . $ 871 $ — $ 556 $ 315
Severance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 150 $ — $ 150 $ —

Restructuring December 31,
January 1, 2003 Charges Payments 2003

Long-term lease obligations . . . $ 1,615 $ — $ 744 $ 871 
Severance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 402 $ 846 $1,098 $ 150 

Restructuring December 31,
January 1, 2002 Charges Payments 2002

Long-term lease obligations . . . $ 2,476 $ 1,521 $ 2,382 $1,615 
Severance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 616 $ 799 $1,013 $ 402 
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(18) Subsequent Event—Acquisition of Maco Apparel S.p.A. 

On January 3, 2005, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Guess Italia S.r.l. (“Guess Italia”)
(collectively, the “Purchasers”), completed the acquisition of the remaining 90% of Maco the Company did
not already own from Fingen S.p.A. and Fingen Apparel N.V. (collectively, the “Sellers”), as well as the 
assets and leases of certain retail stores in Europe. In 2004, Maco was the Italian licensee of GUESS
jeanswear for men and women in Europe. The agreement includes the purchase of inventory and
receivables, the assumption of certain liabilities, and the transfer of leases for the GUESS retail locations. 
The stores are located in Rome, Milan, Paris, Amsterdam, London, and certain other European cities. 

The purchase price for the Maco shares will be 90% of the adjusted net book value of Maco after
completion of the 2004 year-end audit (the “Share Purchase Price”). The Sellers are further obligated to
make a cash contribution to the Purchasers equal to any loss accrued during 2004, plus the amount of any
unrealized accounts receivable prior to June 30, 2005. The purchase price for the Maco shares is to be paid 
as follows: on April 15, 2005, the Purchasers will pay €500,000 to the Sellers, and on July 1, 2005 and on
each January 30 and June 30 thereafter, through June 30, 2009, the Purchasers will pay to the Sellers an
amount, if any, equal to 11.1% of the difference between the Share Purchase Price and €500,000. 

The Company, through its subsidiaries, will also be purchasing enumerated assets of retail and outlet
apparel stores in Italy, France, England, the Netherlands and Switzerland on various transfer dates. The
purchase price for these assets will be approximately €11.4 million and will consist of (i) €10 million, 
representing the value of the leasehold improvements and key money for the stores, (ii)  the aggregate 
amount properly accrued by Sellers for costs paid after October 1, 2004 and prior to the transfer date for
capital improvements for the London store lease up to €819,000, (iii) the aggregate amount properly 
accrued by Sellers for costs incurred for the “key-money” paid to procure a store in Amsterdam, and for all 
capital expenditures for the store (not to exceed €550,000), and (iv) an amount equal to the value of the 
inventories as of each applicable transfer date. 

The Purchasers have also agreed to pay the Sellers an amount not to exceed €1.5 million for the 
Fall/Winter line 2005 design and development costs. The agreement also provides for repayment by the
Purchasers of any outstanding bank debt or inter-company loans of Maco as of January 1, 2005. 

On January 3, 2005, the Purchasers completed the acquisition of Maco as described above. Certain 
store related assets and store leasehold interests are expected to be transferred to Purchasers from Sellers 
no later than March 31, 2005 except for the transfer of the London store which is currently under 
construction and scheduled to be transferred no later than July 30, 2005. 
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SCHEDULE II 
GUESS?, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES 

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 
Years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002

(in thousands) 

Balance at
beginning
of period 

Charged to
costs and
expenses  

Deductions 
and 

write-offs  

Balance at
end

of period
Description 
As of December 31, 2004

Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 8,092 $ 5,929 $ (5,343 )  $ 8,678
Royalties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,705  (996) — 709

As of December 31, 2003
Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 8,347 $ 6,657 $ (6,912 )  $ 8,092
Royalties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,013  692 — 1,705

As of December 31, 2002
Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $10,220 $ 13,482 $ (15,355 )  $ 8,347
Royalties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,298  20 (305 ) 1,013
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10.61. 2004 Equity Incentive Plan.(14) 



Exhibit
Number  Description 

14.1. Code of Conduct of the Company.(15) 
18.0. Letter Regarding Change in Accounting Principles.(6)

**21.1. List of Subsidiaries. 
**23.1. Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. 
**31.1. Certification of Co-Chief Executive Officer and Director pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- 

Oxley Act of 2002.(16) 
**31.2. Certification of Co-Chief Executive Officer and Director pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- 

Oxley Act of 2002.(16) 
**31.3. Certification of President, Chief Operating Officer and Director pursuant to Section 302 of the 

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.(16)
**31.4. Certification of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.(16)
**32.1. Certification of Co-Chief Executive Officer and Director pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- 

Oxley Act of 2002.(17) 
**32.2. Certification of Co-Chief Executive Officer and Director pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- 

Oxley Act of 2002.(17) 
**32.3. Certification of President, Chief Operating Officer and Director pursuant to Section 906 of the 

Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002.(17)
**32.4. Certification of Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002.(17) 

* Management Contract or Compensatory Plan

** Filed herewith

(1) Incorporated by reference from the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-4419)
filed by the Company on June 24, 1996, as amended. 

(2) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 29, 2001

(3) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 29, 2003. 

(4) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 1996. 

(5) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 1997. 

(6) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 28, 1998.

(7) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 1999. 

(8) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2000. 

(9) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2001. 

(10) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration
No. 333-81274) filed by the Company on January 23, 2002. 



(11) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2002. 

(12) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 28, 2003.

(13) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 5, 2005. 

(14) Incorporated by reference from Appendix A to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement on
Form 14A filed April 14, 2004. 

(15) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2003. 

(16) A signed original of this written statement required by Section 302 has been provided to the Company 
and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its 
staff upon request. 

(17) A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company 
and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its 
staff upon request. 
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Corporate Headquarters 
Guess?, Inc. 
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Telephone: (213) 765-3100 
www.guess.com 

Transfer Agent and Registrar
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A. 
P.O. Box 43023
Providence, RI 02940-3010 
Telephone: (877) 282-1168 
For the hearing impaired 
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Stock Exchange 
Guess?, Inc. stock is listed on the 
New York Stock Exchange under the 
symbol “GES” 

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
KPMG LLP 
355 South Grand Avenue, S-2000
Los Angeles, CA 90071

Investor Relations 
You may obtain copies of our annual 
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly 
reports on Form 10-Q, and current 
reports on Form 8-K, free of charge, 
on our website at www.guess.com or 
by contacting us as follows: 

Guess?, Inc. 
Attn: Investor Relations 
1444 South Alameda Street
Los Angeles, CA 90021
Telephone: (213) 765-5578 
Fax: (213) 765-5927

As required by Section 303A.12(a) of the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual, the 
Company filed its Annual CEO Certifications with the New York Stock Exchange in 2004.  As disclosed in
the Annual CEO Certifications, at that time, due to a vacancy on the Board, the Company was technically 
not in compliance with the New York Stock Exchange Rule requiring a majority of independent directors. 
The appointment of Karen Neuburger to the Board on June 30, 2004 brought the Company into 
compliance with the majority independence requirement.


